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AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE
CITY OF KING CITY COUNCIL
AND
Sitting as SUCCESSOR AGENCY OF
THE RDA FOR THE CITY OF KING
TUESDAY APRIL 12, 2022
6:00 P.M.
CITY HALL
212 S. VANDERHURST AVENUE
KING CITY, CALIFORNIA 93930
The City Council meeting will be conducted in hybrid in-person/virtual format.
To join the meeting virtually, please use the link below to join the Zoom meeting:
https://bit.ly/3e0zvaR
Meeting ID: 881 5287 9536
Or by telephone: 1-669-900-9128
Passcode: 052933

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in a City meeting,
Please contact the City Clerk's Office (831-386-5925) at least 48 hours prior to the Meeting to ensure that reasonable
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting.
* Please submit all correspondence for City Council PRIOR to the meeting with a copy to the City Clerk.

1.

CALL TO ORDER

2.

ROLL CALL: Council Members Darlene Acosta, Robert Cullen, Carlos DeLeon,
Mayor Pro Tem Carlos Victoria, and Mayor Mike LeBarre

3.

FLAG SALUTE

4.

CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS

5.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
None

6.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any member of the public may address the Council for a period not to exceed three minutes’ total on any item of interest
within the jurisdiction of this Council that is not on the agenda. The Council will listen to all communications; however, in
compliance with the Brown Act, the Council cannot act on items not on the agenda. Comments should be directed to the
Council as a whole and not to any individual Council Member. Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any
Council Member, staff member or member of the audience is not permitted.

7.

COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS & COMMITTEE REPORTS

8.

STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

9.

CONSENT AGENDA

Individual Council Members may comment on Council business, his or her Council activities, City operations, projects or
other items of community interest. Council Members may also request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting on
any matter or take action to direct staff to prepare a staff report for a future agenda.

Comments presented by the City Manager, City Attorney or other staff on City business and/or announcements.

The following items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group. The recommendations for each item are
noted. Members of the audience may speak on any item(s) listed on the Consent Agenda. Any Council Member, the City
Manager, or the City Attorney may request that an item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to allow for full discussion.
The Council may approve the remainder of the Consent Agenda on one motion. Items withdrawn from the Consent
Agenda may be considered by separate motions at the conclusion of the discussion of each item.

A.

Consideration: Meeting Minutes of March 22, 2022, Council Meeting
Recommendation: approve and file.

B.

Consideration: City of King Check Register March 16, through March 31, 2022
Recommendation: receive and file.

C.

Consideration: Resolution in Support of the County of Monterey Regional
Housing Trust Fund (RHTF) Program Application
Recommendation: adopt a Resolution in Support of the County of Monterey
Regional Housing Trust Fund (RHTF) Program Application

D.

Consideration: Scope of Work for Airport Improvement Program FY 2022
Federal Aviation Administration Grant Application
Recommendation: 1) adopt a revised Resolution to authorize the City Manager
to submit, accept, and execute a grant agreement with the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) for the Airport Improvement Program transmittal of Fiscal
Year 2022; and 2) adopt finding a Categorical Exemption, pursuant to Section
15301 of the CEQA Guidelines

E.

Consideration: King City Chamber of Commerce & Agriculture City-Wide Yard
Sale and Sidewalk Sale
Recommendation: 1) approve the King City Chamber of Commerce &
Agriculture special event permit request for a City-wide Yard Sale and
Sidewalk Sale on June 24, 2022, to June 26, 2022; 2) waive all garage sale
permit fees and requirements during those days; and 3) waive fees for the
special event permit.

10. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Consideration: An Urgency Ordinance Adopting an Equipment Use Policy Per
Assembly Bill 481
Recommendation: adopt an urgency ordinance establishing a military
equipment use policy to take effect immediately upon adoption.

11. REGULAR BUSINESS
A.

Consideration: Acceptance of the City and CDA Successor Agency’s Audited
Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Recommendation: City Council and the Board of Directors of the King City
CDA Successor Agency accept the City and CDA Successor Agency’s
Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021.

B.

Consideration: Memorandum of Understanding to Strengthen Relations
Between Military Installations and Local Governments
Recommendation: 1) approve and authorize the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of King, City of Paso Robles,
Fort Hunter Liggett, Camp Roberts, and Camp San Luis Obispo to strengthen
relations between military installations and local governments; and 2) appoint
a Policy Committee member and alternate.

12. CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION

Announcement(s) of any reportable action(s) taken in Closed Session will be made in open session and repeated at the
beginning of the next Regular City Council meeting as this portion of the meeting is not recorded.

A.

Conference with Legal Counsel – Liability Claims (Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.95) Consideration of claim no. 202205, Claimant Ernesto Hernandez; claims regarding a fall at City Park in King
City, CA. on 11/10/21.

13. ADJOURNMENT

The City of King is an equal opportunity provider and employer.
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Not official minutes of the meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING HIGHLIGHTS
March 17, 2022
F ISCAL Y EAR 2022-23 O PERATING B UDGET
E FFECTIVE J ULY 1, 2022

AND

D ISPOSAL

AND

S ERVICE F EES

A public hearing was held to consider the approval of the operating and
CIP budget of $23,500,000 that had previously been presented to the
Board. The budget is balanced and includes increases to organics
tipping fees, AB 939 fees, and a reduction to the solid waste tipping
fee. The budget also assumes equalized organics rates, closure of the
Sun Street Transfer Station, the relocation of AB 939 services as well as
hauling for Republic Services at Madison Lane Transfer Station. Some of
the elements in the budget are still being negotiated, but assumptions
will be updated as information becomes available.

P ROCESSING

AND

M ARKETING

OF

O RGANICS A GREEMENTS A WARDED

After several months of negotiation between Atlas Organics and the Authority, a Professional
Services agreement and Lease agreement for the processing and marketing of organics at the
Johnson Canyon Landfill were approved by the Board. Atlas Organics comes with experience in
composting and marketing the end products and will be incorporating the use of innovative
technology into the process. The Johnson Canyon Composting Facility is expected to receive
approximately 45,000 tons of organic material in FY 2022-23 that includes yard waste, wood
waste, food scraps and de-packaged agricultural products.

O RGANICS R ECYCLING P ROGRAM SB 1383 U PDATE
An update on the progress made on the SB 1383 program was presented to
the Board. The program includes the Curbside Food Scrap program and new
outreach and educational materials focusing on behavior change.
Several things have been taking place since late 2020 to expand the
program and meet the mandates of SB 1383. In 2020, 173 commercial
food waste customers where enrolled within the Authority’s service
area. Currently there is 261 enrolled thanks to outreach conducted
by the haulers and Authority. Staff is also working with the haulers,
County and City representatives to roll out programs to implement food
scrap and food recovery programs at schools and developing School
Training videos. Development of the Monterey County Edible Food
Recovery Technical Advisory Committee and subcommittees was
completed in March 2021 to assist the member agencies and their haulers with program roll out.
A soft launch of the Residential Food Scraps Collection Program rolled out in January 2022 with
the full launch expected on Earth Day April 22, 2022. Staff has worked diligently with the
marketing consultants to develop flyers, brochures, a web page, printed ads, social media post,
kitchen pails, and a billboard that has been posted South of Soledad.
F I N AN CI AL R E P OR T FOR M ON T H E N DED J ANU ARY 2022 (58.3% OF T HE F IS CAL Y EAR )
Revenue collected
Expenditures for operations
Cash balance

REDUCE

$ 15,000,685 (65.5% of Estimated Revenue of $23,271,850)
$ 11,484,020 (55.4% of Operating Budget of $20,525,000)
$ 34,102,360

REUSE

RECYCLE

“To manage Salinas Valley solid waste as a resource, promoting sustainable, environmentally sound and cost-effective practices through an integrated
system of waste reduction, reuse, recycling, innovative technology, customer service, and education.”

Not official minutes of the meeting.

JUNTA DIRECTIVA
NOTAS DESTACADAS
(Agencia gubernamental de gestión de residuos sólidos)

17 de marzo 2022

P RESUPUESTO O PERATIVO DEL A ÑO F ISCAL 2022-23 Y T ARIFAS DE E LIMINACIÓN Y S ERVICIO
E FECTIVO EL 1 DE J ULIO 2022
Se llevó a cabo una audiencia pública para considerar la aprobación del
presupuesto operativo y del CIP de $23,500,000 que previamente había
sido presentado al Consejo. El presupuesto está equilibrado e incluye
aumentos en las tarifas de residuos orgánicos, tarifas AB 939 y una
reducción en la tarifa de desechos sólidos. El presupuesto también
asume tarifas orgánicas igualadas, el cierre de la estación de
transferencia de Sun Street, la reubicación de los servicios AB 939 y el
transporte para Republic Services en la estación de transferencia de
Madison Lane. Algunos de los elementos del presupuesto aún se están
negociando, pero los supuestos se actualizarán a medida que la
información esté disponible.

A CUE RDOS PARA EL P ROCESAMIENTO Y C OMERCIALIZACIÓN DE O RGÁNICOS O TORGADOS
Después de varios meses de negociación entre Atlas Organics y la A gencia, el Consejo
aprobó un acuerdo de Servicios Profesionales y un acuerdo de Arrendamiento para el
procesamiento y comercialización de productos orgánicos en el Relleno Sanitario Johnson
Canyon. Atlas Organics viene con experiencia en compostaje y la comercialización de los
productos finales e incorporará el uso de tecnología innovadora en el proceso. Se espera que
la instalación de compostaje de Johnson Canyon reciba aproximadamente 45 ,000 toneladas
de material orgánico en el año fiscal 2022 -23, que incluye desechos de j ardín, desechos de
madera, sobras de alimentos y productos agrícolas desempaquetados.

A CTUALIZACIÓN DEL P ROGRAMA DE R ECICLAJE DE O RGÁNICOS SB 1383
Se presentó al Consejo una actualización sobre el progreso realizado en el
programa de Reciclaje de Orgánicos SB 1383. El programa incluye el
programa de colección de sobras de comida y materiales nuevos
educativos de divulgación centrados en el cambio de
comportamiento. Se han llevado a cabo varia s cosas desde fines
del 2020 para expandir el programa y cumplir con los mandatos de
SB 1383. En el 2020, 173 clientes comerciales de colección de sobras
de comida se inscribieron dentro del área de servicio de la
Agencia. Actualmente hay 261 inscritos gracias a la d ivulgación
realizada por los transportistas y la A gencia. El personal también está
trabajando con los transportistas, los representantes del condado y la
ciudades para implementar programas de recuperación de alimentos
comestibles y sobras de comida en las escuelas y desarrollar videos de
capacitación escolar. El desarrol lo del Comité Asesor Técnico de Recuperación de Alimentos
Comestibles del Condado de Monterey y los subcomités se completó en marzo de 2021 para
ayudar a las agencias miembros y sus transportistas con la implementación del programa. Un
lanzamiento preliminar del Programa de Recolección de Sobras de Comida Residenciales se
llevó a cabo en enero de 2022 y se espera el lanzamiento completo el Día de la Tierra el 22 de
abril de 2022. El personal ha trabajado diligentemente con los consultores de marketi ng para
desarrollar volantes, folletos, una página web, anuncios cuartillas, publicaciones de redes
sociales, recipientes de cocina y una valla publicitaria que se ha colocado al sur de Soledad.
INFORME FINANCIERO

DEL

Ingresos recaudados
Gastos de operaciones
Saldo de caja

MES FINALIZADO

EN E N E R O

2022 (58.3%

DEL

AÑO FISCAL)

$ 15,000,685 (65.5% del Ingreso Estimado de $23,271,850)
$ 10,364,020 (50.2% del Presupuesto Operativo de $20,525,000)
$ 35,216,721

REDUCIR

REUTILIZAR

RECICLAR

“Manejar los residuos sólidos del Valle de Salinas como un recurso, promocionando prácticas sostenibles y ecológicamente racionales y practicas costos eficaces a
través de un sistema integrado de reducción, reutilización, reciclaje, tecnología innovadora, servicio al cliente y educación.”
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City Council Meeting
March 22, 2022
1.__CALL TO ORDER:
Regular Meeting called to order at 6:00pm by Mayor LeBarre.
2.__FLAG SALUTE:
The flag salute was led by Chief Boyd.
3.__ROLL CALL:
City Council:

Mike LeBarre, Council member Darlene Acosta, Carlos DeLeon, Mayor Pro Tem
Carlos Victoria.

Council Members Rob Cullen is absent, he mentioned he would not be at this meeting last meeting.
City Staff:

City Manager Steven Adams; City Attorney Roy Santos; Executive Admin.
Asst./Deputy City Clerk, Erica Sonne.

4. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS:
None
5.__PRESENTATIONS:
None
6. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:
None
7. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS:
Mayor Pro Tem Victoria congratulated the Police Department on a successful Check point Friday night. He
had an informal meeting about El Grito and trying to bring it back this year.
Council Member DeLeon stated nothing to report tonight.
Council Member Acosta stated nothing to report tonight.
Mayor LeBarre stated a press release announces today on California Transportation Commission
Reserves $7.5 Million for Phase 1 of King City’s Accelerated Access Rail Platform & Multi-Modal Transit
Center. He congratulated staff and thanked them for all their hard work. This has been a long hard job.
Making excellent progress on the grants due to all the employee’s hard work.
8. CITY STAFF REPORTS AND COMMENTS:
City Manager Steven Adams stated that we have been successful not only for the Multi-modal station,
Homekey program application was approved and the 1 million dollars that Congressman Panetta put in a
bill for the Streetscape projects. The mayor has been involved in all of these advocating for these projects.
We appreciate that. Blues Zone Project is in full gear.
City Attorney Roy Santos stated nothing from him tonight.
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9. CONSENT AGENDA
A.
B.
C.

D.

E.
F.
G.

Consideration: Meeting Minutes of March 8, 2022, Council Meeting
Consideration: City of King Check Register March 1, through March 15, 2022
Consideration: Resolution Re-authorizing the Conduct of Public Meetings of the Legislative
Bodies of the City Via Remote Teleconferencing for an Additional 30-Day Period Pursuant to
the Ralph M. Brown Act as Amended by Assembly Bill No. 361.
Consideration: An Ordinance Establishing Regulations for Urban Lot Splits and Two-Unit
Developments in R-1 Zones Pursuant to Senate Bill 9 and Amendments to Regulations of
Accessory Dwelling Units
Consideration: Annual General Plan Report and Housing Element Annual Report for 2021
Consideration: Cancellation of July 26, 2022 Meeting
Consideration: Adjustments to the FY 2021-22 Job Classification Plan

Action: Motion to approve consent agenda items A-G by Victoria and seconded by Acosta.
AYES: Council Members: LeBarre, Acosta, DeLeon and Victoria
NOES: Council Members:
ABSENT: Council Members: Cullen
ABSTAIN: Council Members:
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
A.
Consideration: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2022 Notice of Funding Availability
(NOFA) Hearing
City Manager Steve Adams introduced this item.
Mayor LeBarre opened the public hearing, hearing and seeing no one come forward, Mayor LeBarre closed
the public hearing.
Action: Motion to direct staff to make an application and funding be directed to Pro Youth by Acosta and
seconded by DeLeon.
AYES: Council Members: LeBarre, Acosta, DeLeon and Victoria
NOES: Council Members:
ABSENT: Council Members: Cullen
ABSTAIN: Council Members:
11. REGULAR BUSINESS:
A.

Consideration: Citywide Security Camera System Phase III

Police Chief Keith Boyd introduced this item.
Action: Motion 1) authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Surveillance Grid Integration, Inc.
in a form approved by the City Attorney for the purchase and installation of Phase III of the citywide
security camera system; 2) appropriate $385,576.66 in FY 2021-22 from American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
funds; 3) reallocate $50,000 budgeted in FY 2022-23 for the project to FY 2021-22; and 4) adopt a finding
of a Categorical Exemption, pursuant to Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines by DeLeon and seconded
by Victoria.
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AYES: Council Members: LeBarre, Acosta, DeLeon and Victoria
NOES: Council Members:
ABSENT: Council Members: Cullen
ABSTAIN: Council Members:
B.

Consideration: Authorization to Accept a 3-Year California Department of Justice Tobacco Grant

City Council member Darlene Acosta recused herself from this item due to a conflict and left the meeting.
Police Chief Keith Boyd introduced this item.
Action: Motion to adopt resolution authorizing staff to accept a 3-year California Department of Justice
Tobacco Grant totaling $67,695 DeLeon and seconded by Victoria.
AYES: Council Members: LeBarre, DeLeon and Victoria
NOES: Council Members:
ABSENT: Council Members: Acosta, Cullen
ABSTAIN: Council Members:
Council member Darlene Acosta returned to the meeting.
C.

Consideration: Award of Purchase Order for the Jayne Street Solar Lighting Project – Light
Purchase and Installation

City Manager Steve Adams introduced this item.
Action: Motion to 1) authorize a Purchase Order to SCL North in the amount $61,511.98 for purchase of
solar lights and poles; 2) authorize a work order with Cal West in the amount of $25,609.84 to construct
the footings and install the poles and lights; and 3) adopt a finding of a Categorical Exemption, pursuant
to Section 15311 of the CEQA Guidelines by DeLeon and seconded by Victoria.
AYES: Council Members: LeBarre, Acosta, DeLeon and Victoria
NOES: Council Members:
ABSENT: Council Members: Cullen
ABSTAIN: Council Members:
12. CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION
A.

Conference with Legal Counsel – Liability Claims (Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.95)
(Consideration of a petition to file a late claim; Consideration of claim no. 2022-02, Claimant
Demesia Higuera; claims regarding a traffic collision on U.S. Highway 101 near the City of
Greenfield on 3/20/21 resulting in alleged damages or injury.)

B.

Conference with Legal Counsel – Liability Claims (Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.95)
(Consideration of a petition to file a late claim; Consideration of claim no. 2022-03, Claimant
Demesia Higuera for a minor; claims regarding a traffic collision on U.S. Highway 101 near the City
of Greenfield on 3/20/21 resulting in alleged damages or injury.)
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C.

Conference with Labor Negotiators
Agency Representative: Steven Adams
Employee Organization: KCCEA and SEIU
Gov. Code Section: 54957.6

ADJOURNMENT:
Mayor LeBarre adjourned the meeting at 6:53p.m. to closed session reading the closed session titles into
the record. Mayor LeBarre adjourned the meeting at 7:17 on a motion by Victoria and second by DeLeon.
Motion carried 4-0.
Approved Signatures:

Mayor, Michael LeBarre
City of King
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Item No. 9(B)
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

MIKE HOWARD, FINANCE DIRECTOR

RE:

CONSIDERATION OF CITY OF KING CHECK REGISTER
MARCH 16 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended City Council receive and file.
BACKGROUND:
At least once a month, the City Treasurer shall submit to the City Council, a copy
of the invoices paid for the previous month.
DISCUSSION:
The purpose of this item is to provide the Council an opportunity to review and
monitor ongoing expenditures. These documents are attached.
COST ANALYSIS:
There is no fiscal impact as a result of this action.
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:
No Environmental Review required for this item.
ALTERNATIVES:
The following alternatives are provided for Council consideration:
1. Receive and file the report; or
2. Provide other direction to staff regarding requests for additional information.

Item No. 9(C)

REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL
DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

DOREEN LIBERTO,
DIRECTOR

AICP,

COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE
COUNTY OF MONTEREY REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND
(RHTF) PROGRAM APPLICATION
RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended the City Council adopt a Resolution supporting a Regional
Housing Trust.
BACKGROUND:
On July 23, 2020, the City Council adopted a Resolution supporting a Regional
Housing Trust Fund (RHTF) and allocated a portion of the City’s Permanent Local
Housing Allocation (PLHA) Program grant funds. The County, who took the lead
for establishing the RHTF, did not receive the requested State funds and the RHTF
was not created. The County is attempting to establish a RHTF again and
requesting the City adopt a Resolution of Support.
DISCUSSION
Since 2020, the City has continued to work on providing affordable housing, and a
number of projects have either been approved or in the planning stages. On
December 14, 2021, the City Council revised the PHLA Grant Program and
reallocated the RHTF funding to local projects because it was unclear when or if a
regional housing trust fund would be established. It is now unclear if the City will
have available funding in the future from the PHLA program to financially support
the RHTF. As a result, staff recommends deferring any commitment of funding
until it is determined whether it is needed for local projects, but in the meantime

CITY COUNCIL
APRIL 12, 2022
CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE COUNTY OF
MONTEREY REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST FUND (RHTF) PROGRAM
APPLICATION
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the City Council can support the proposed program by adopting a Resolution.
Therefore, a recommended Resolution of Support is presented for Council
consideration.
COST ANALYSIS:
There is no General Fund impact associated with this agenda item. The Resolution
of Support does not require a local financial commitment or match from local
jurisdictions requesting grant funds.
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:
The City of King has determined that the proposed action is not a project as defined
by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) per Guidelines Section 15378.
CEQA Guidelines Section 15061 includes the general rule that CEQA applies only
to activities which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that
the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity
is not subject to CEQA. Because the proposed action and this matter have no
potential to cause any effect on the environment, or because it falls within a
category of activities excluded as projects pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section
15378, this matter is not a project. Because the matter does not cause a direct or
foreseeable indirect physical change on or in the environment, this matter is not a
project. Any subsequent discretionary projects resulting from this action will be
assessed for CEQA applicability.
ALTERNATIVES:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Adopt the attached Resolution.
Do not adopt the attached Resolution and take no action.
Direct staff to amend the Resolution.
Provide alternate direction.

Exhibits:
1.

Resolution No. 2022-4867

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-4867
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING SUPPORTING
ESTABLISHMENT OF A REGIONAL HOUSING TRUST
WHEREAS, homelessness in the County of Monterey region has increased over
time, and the City of King recognizes that homelessness is a regional issue; and
WHEREAS, homelessness, locally, is a result of various causes that includes a
lack of affordable and supportive housing units, the high cost of workforce housing, a
shortage of jobs that result in wages that pay for local rents, mental illness and substance
use, the high cost of land and housing development, and more; and
WHEREAS, in the County of Monterey, there is a shortfall of beds and units in
each housing category, making the goal of ending homelessness in our region extremely
difficult to attain without adding more housing units; and
WHEREAS, the concept of adding to the supply of supportive housing - supportive
housing meaning where a person who may have formerly been homeless is able to
secure and maintain his or her housing provided that services are provided to the
individual to help them stay successfully in housing - is deemed to be beneficial to solving
especially the needs of the chronically homeless; and
WHEREAS, creating a Regional Housing Trust in Monterey County will help
secure both public and private dollars and ensure that Monterey County as a region
attains its share of State resources approved by California residents and the California
Legislature to address housing and homelessness via the provision of more housing
units, especially supportive housing.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of King
supports the County of Monterey’s efforts to establish a Regional Housing Trust.
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of April 2022, by the
following vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTEST

STEVEN ADAMS, City Clerk
CITY OF KING

By:

MIKE LEBARRE, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

ROY C. SANTOS, City Attorney
Aleshire & Wynder, LLP

I, ______________________________, City Clerk of the City of King, California, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of the Resolution
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of King on the date and by the vote
indicated herein.

Item No. 9 (D)
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER

BY:

OCTAVIO HURTADO, CITY ENGINEER

RE:

CONSIDERATION OF REVISED SCOPE OF WORK FOR AIRPORT
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FISCAL YEAR 2022 FEDERAL AVIATION
ADMINISTRATION GRANT APPLICATION

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended City Council: 1) adopt a revised Resolution to authorize the City
Manager to submit, accept, and execute a grant agreement with the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) for the Airport Improvement Program transmittal of Fiscal Year
2022; and 2) adopt a finding of a Categorical Exemption, pursuant to Section 15301 of
the CEQA Guidelines
BACKGROUND:
On September 3, 2020, the City received a grant offer for the design phase of the
taxiway rehabilitation and reconstruction project (AIP 2020). The project involves a full
55,000 square foot rehabilitation and reconstruction of Taxiway A with 165,000 square
feet of crack sealing, seal coating and remarking. The project also consists of installing
runway aiming points pavement markings on Runway 11-29. With the design phase
grant near completion, staff proposed to request funding from FAA and Caltrans to
assist in funding construction, which was authorized by Council at the December 14,
2021 meeting.
During the FAA review of the project, it was determined that since the existing airport
hangers encroach on the minimum setback to the runway as shown on the Airport
Layout Plan, the FAA cannot fund permanent improvements within the setback. The
55,000 SF of rehabilitation and reconstruction was subsequently changed to crack
sealing and seal coating, which will comply with FAA restrictions since it considered a
maintenance improvement. Therefore, adoption of a revised resolution is necessary.

CITY COUNCIL
CONSIDERATION OF REVISED SCOPE OF WORK FOR AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM FISCAL YEAR 2022 FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION GRANT
APPLICATION
APRIL 12, 2022
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DISCUSSION:
By providing crack sealing and seal coating to the existing pavement at this stage, it will
extend the useful life of the taxiway until the setback issue is resolved in the City’s next
Airport Layout Plan update. With this grant, the airport will maintain existing pavement
infrastructure. It will also result in a more consistent pavement surface since only a
portion was going to be reconstructed. The downside of the change is that the surface
will have a shorter life span than a full reconstruction.
FAA provides grants of up to 90% of the cost. The remaining 10% is to be covered by
local share. However, the City/Sponsor may apply for the State Matching Grant for FAA
Airport Improvement Program (“Caltrans 5% Matching Funds”), which would help offset
the local share amount. The total estimated project cost for the construction is
$290,706.
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:
Staff has performed a preliminary environmental assessment of this project and has
determined that it falls within the Class 1 Categorical Exemption set forth in CEQA
Guidelines, section 15301 as this project is for the repair and maintenance of the Airport
Taxiway A pavement, which will not result in the expansion of the Airport Taxiway.
Furthermore, none of the exceptions to Categorical Exemptions set forth in the CEQA
Guidelines, section 15300.2 apply to this project.
The City submitted a Documented Categorical Exclusion form to the FAA for
consideration of this project pursuant to FAA Order 1050.1F as it relates to the National
Environmental Protection Act (“NEPA”). On March 10, 2022, the City received
notification from FAA that the proposed project has complied with NEPA and that no
further federal environmental disclosure documentation for this project was necessary
for NEPA purposes.
COST ANALYSIS:
The total project estimate is $290,706.00. The Federal Grant amount is proposed to be
$261,635.00, and the City’s responsibility will be $29,071.00. Of the $29,071.00, staff
recommends applying for a Caltrans grant of $13,081.75 to cover 5% of the FAA grant.
If approved by Caltrans, the City will fund the remaining $15,989.25 from Fund 15
Airport to cover the local match requirement, which has been included in the FY 202122/FY 2022-23 Biennial Budget. The local match can be provided as in-kind, staff time
and Contract City Engineer time for project management. The City may also use it’s
annual $10,000 CAAP funds to assist in the local match contribution.

Exhibit 1
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-4866
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION, ACCEPTANCE OF AN
ALLOCATION OF FUNDS AND EXECUTION OF A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION, FOR AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM TRANSMITTAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2022
WHEREAS, the City completed the Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP) for
fiscal years 2022-2031; and
WHEREAS, the City has completed an application for federal funding Fiscal Year
2022 for Taxiway A Rehabilitation Project that includes approximately 241,000 square
feet of the taxiway that will be subject to crack sealed, seal coated and restriped
(Construction Phase); and
WHEREAS, the City Council authorizes the City Manager to submit the FAA
Grant Application for Fiscal Year 2022; and
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that at acceptance of the Federal
Assistance for Fiscal Year 2022, the City Manager of the City of King is authorized to
enter into and sign the grant agreement and any subsequent amendments with the
Federal Aviation Administration for the purpose of this grant.
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of King as follows:
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of
King City held April 12, 2022, by the following vote:
AYES, Councilmembers:
NOES, Councilmembers:
ABSENT, Councilmembers:
ABSTAIN, Councilmembers:
ATTEST:
Steven Adams, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
_____________________________________
Roy Santos
City Attorney

Michael LeBarre, Mayor

Exhibit 2

Item No. 9(E)
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER

RE:

CONSIDERATION OF KING CITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE &
AGRICULTURE CITY-WIDE YARD SALE AND SIDEWALK SALE

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended the City Council: 1) approve the King City Chamber of
Commerce & Agriculture special event permit request for a City-wide Yard Sale
and Sidewalk Sale on June 24, 2022 to June 26, 2022; 2) waive all garage sale
permit fees and requirements during those days; and 3) waive fees for the
special event permit.
BACKGROUND:
The King City Chamber of Commerce & Agriculture has submitted a special
event permit request for a City-wide Yard Sale and Sidewalk Sale on June 24,
2022 to June 26, 2022. A copy of the request letter is attached. They have
asked for Council authorization to promote the event and to waive any garage
sale permit fees and requirements during those three days. They have also
requested the special event permit fee be waived.
DISCUSSION:
This event has been part of Beautification Week activities for a number of years.
The purpose is to enable residents and businesses to conveniently and
successfully dispose of unwanted items, while diverting them from the landfill.
Meanwhile, by encouraging residents and businesses to conduct them
concurrently as part of a citywide event, it will help bring customers to the City.
Therefore, there is a public benefit from the program and the City has approved
this event and waiving the permit fees in the past.

EXHIBIT 1

Item No. 10 (A)
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

KEITH BOYD, CHIEF OF POLICE

RE:

CONSIDERATION OF AN URGENCY ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN
EQUIPMENT USE POLICY PER ASSEMBLY BILL 481

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended the City Council adopt an urgency ordinance establishing a military
equipment use policy to take effect immediately upon adoption.
BACKGROUND:
Assembly Bill 481 (AB 481 or the Bill), codified in Government Code sections 7070
through 7075, requires law enforcement agencies (LEAs) to have a “military equipment”
use policy (the Policy) adopted by ordinance (the Ordinance) in place by May 1, 2022
in order to fund, acquire, or use any military equipment. The purpose of the legislation
appears to be to provide safeguards against some of the controversial uses of military
equipment that have been undertaken by some police departments. However, there
are other military items that are helpful in the Police Department’s everyday operation.
Therefore, the King City Police Department seeks City Council adoption of the attached
Military Equipment Use Policy – King City Police Department Lexipol Policy 708, in order
to allow continued use of the vital equipment specified therein, as well as future
acquisition of new equipment.
It is required at this time to be considered as an “urgency ordinance” in order to meet
the deadline established by the legislation. As a result, a 4/5 vote of City Council will
be necessary for adoption.
DISCUSSION:
Items deemed to be “military equipment” by AB 481 are used as a component of overall
best practices for LEAs throughout the country. These tools have been tested in the

CITY COUNCIL
CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AN EQUIPMENT USE POLICY
PER ASSEMBLY BILL 481
APRIL 12, 2022
PAGE 2 OF 3
field and are used by LEAs to enhance citizen and officer safety. Loss of these items
would jeopardize the welfare of citizens and peace officers within the Police
Department. The term “military equipment,” as used in AB 481, in fact does not
necessarily indicate equipment that has been used by the military.
Currently, the Police Department utilizes one unmanned aerial system limited to daylight
flight, four bean bag shotguns, and four patrol rifles, which are considered “military
equipment” under the terms of AB 481. Unmanned aerial systems allow officers to
assess situations greater distances to reduce risks to the public and officers. Bean bag
shotguns create an opportunity to peacefully resolve volatile incidents with less lethal
force options. Patrol rifles utilized by the Police Department, which allow officers to
address lethal threats from greater distances with greater precision, are exempt from
the provisions of AB 481.
Along with seeking authorization to use preexisting equipment, the Police Department
seeks authorization to acquire, fund and use new pieces of equipment in the future. The
Police Department, during the next fiscal year, plans to acquire an unmanned aerial
system capable of nighttime flight operations and four bean bag shotguns. The
acquisition of the unmanned aerial system capable of night operations would allow the
Police Department to conduct enforcement and search operations at any time of day.
The purchase of additional bean bag shotguns would ensure sufficient inventory existed
for a less lethal force option to be available at all times to create greater opportunity for
de-escalation of violent incidents.
The proposed ordinance seeks to approve the Police Department’s Lexipol Policy 708,
which will constitute the Department’s Military Equipment Use Policy. The Police
Department has drafted the policy provided by Lexipol, with modification, to ensure it is
consistent with standard department operating procedures. Lexipol is a service
contracted by the City and most police agencies which provides ongoing updated
standard policies that meet all State and Federal laws. The service provides the added
benefit of maintaining relatively standard policies and procedures among public safety
agencies. The policy outlines each item identified in Government Code section 7070 that
is currently owned by the City, its current use, proposed future acquisitions, and their
uses. Policy 708 also establishes safeguards pertaining to “military equipment”, including
transparency, oversight, and accountability measures.

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-809
AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING
ADDING CHAPTER 7.70 TO THE KING CITY MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING A POLICY
RELATED TO USE OF MILITARY EQUIPMENT POLICY

WHEREAS, On September 30, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed into law
Assembly Bill 481, relating to the use of military equipment by law enforcement
agencies;
WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 481 (AB 481), codified at California Government Code
sections 7070 through 7075, requires law enforcement agencies to obtain approval
of the applicable governing body, by an ordinance adopting a “military equipment”
use policy at a regular meeting held pursuant to open meeting laws prior to taking
certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition, or use of “military equipment”.
The term “military equipment” is defined in California Government Code Section
7070;
WHEREAS, AB 481 allows the City Council to approve the funding, acquisition, or
use of military equipment, within its jurisdiction only if it makes specified
determinations;
WHEREAS, The proposed military equipment use policy is found within King City
Police Department Policy Manual, Policy 706. The policy was published on
February 28, 2022 and displayed on the King City Police Department website on
March 1, 2022 is being presented to the City Council on April 12, 2022;
WHEREAS, The King City Police Department Policy 706 meets the requirements
of California Government Code 7070;
WHEREAS, This ordinance adds Chapter 7.70 to the Municipal Code to affirm
King City Police Department Policy 706 and authorize the use of “military
equipment” by the members of the King City Police Department as described in
Policy 706;
WHEREAS, Article 8 of the City Charter enables the Council to enact an urgency
ordinance when needed to respond to any emergency to preserve the public
peace, health, safety, or public welfare. The City has a compelling interest in
immediately enacting the standards set by King City Police Department Policy 706;
WHEREAS, The City Council determines this ordinance is an urgency measure
needed to immediately preserve public health, safety, and welfare. It is intended
this urgent ordinance shall take immediate effect to avoid and ameliorate the threat
to public peace, health, and safety; and

01222.0001/770926.1

WHEREAS, In the enactment of this ordinance, the City followed the guidelines
adopted by the State of California and published in the California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Section 15000, et seq. and found this activity is not a “project”
as defined by California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because it is an
organizational or administrative activity that will not result in direct or indirect
physical changes in the environment.
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KING DOES HEREBY
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are adopted as findings of the City Council as
though set forth in fully within the body of this ordinance.
SECTION 2. The City Council finds that there is a current and immediate threat to
public health, safety, and welfare posed by the failure to enact this Urgency Ordinance to
address the requirements of Assembly Bill 481, and there is an immediate need for the
preservation of public peace, health or safety of the residents and community of the City.
SECTION 3. The Council hereby affirms King City Police Department Policy 706
and adopts that reference in King City Municipal Code Chapter 7.70, entitled MILITARY
EQUIPMENT as attached hereto, which by this reference shall be incorporated in the
city’s municipal code.
SECTION 4. The City Manager is hereby directed to execute all documents and
to perform all other acts necessary to implement this Ordinance.
SECTION 5. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of
this ordinance, or any part thereof, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance, or any part thereof, or its application to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed and adopted each provision,
section, paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of
the fact that any one or more sections, paragraphs, subparagraphs, sentences, clauses
or phrases, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, be declared invalid
or unconstitutional.
SECTION 6. In accord with Article 8 of the City Charter, this urgency ordinance
shall take immediate effect upon its adoption.

01222.0001/770926.1

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council on the 12th day of April,
2022, by the following vote:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
ATTEST:
_________________________________
Steven Adams, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
__________________________________
Roy C. Santos, City Attorney

01222.0001/770926.1

_____________________________
Michael LeBarre, Mayor

012345

678

93 ÿ35ÿ01
2
3
4

ÿ







012345ÿ 2

EXHIBIT 1

+,-,./01ÿ345,6789.

678:;ÿÿÿ<=><?@3ÿABCÿ@D?<3
23E13ÿF1" ÿ1#ÿGÿHH*I%Jÿ(3!ÿÿ2&ÿ E14 ÿ  43!ÿ!%3ÿÿ11!#
3235ÿ'(3 ÿK!ÿ012345ÿ1ÿ3ÿ1"3 ÿ%1#5ÿE1ÿ1"2$ÿLÿ1!ÿ1Eÿ3!ÿ12345
3!ÿ1ÿ1"3#ÿ3#23!ÿE1ÿÿ1"2ÿ4(3!331 ÿ #ÿ13 ÿ(3 !ÿ1EÿM3235
(3 MÿIF1" ÿ1#ÿGÿHHNÿF1" ÿ1#ÿGÿHH*NÿF1" ÿ1#ÿGÿHHJ$
L3!ÿ12345ÿ3!ÿ1"3##ÿ1ÿE2E322ÿÿ1%2331 !ÿ!ÿE1ÿ3ÿ!!%25ÿO322ÿP*$ÿL!ÿ1%2331 !
342#ÿ%ÿÿ1ÿ233#ÿ1ÿ!Q3 ÿ1"2ÿ1 ÿ!43E34ÿ3!ÿ##ÿ1ÿ%ÿ3235ÿ(3 
 #ÿ(3 !ÿ2#ÿ1ÿ4123 4ÿ 2ÿ13 ÿ421 3 ÿ #ÿ4123!ÿ #3
!ÿ3!$
H$*$*ÿÿÿ'RSTSLSUTV
E3331 !ÿ2#ÿ1ÿ3!ÿ12345ÿ342#ÿIF1" ÿ1#ÿGÿHHJW
XYZ809,9[ÿ\Y]1ÿ^ÿLÿ24#ÿ1ÿ13#ÿ%1#5ÿÿ1"!!ÿÿ $
+,-,./01ÿ845,6789.ÿ^ÿS42#!ÿ%ÿ3!ÿ1ÿ233#ÿ1ÿÿE1221&3 W
_ =97/998]ÿ̀087Y.8-1ÿ6,-Y.8]ÿ̀6Ya808]ÿ/80,/-ÿY0ÿ[0Y59]ÿZ8b,c-8d:
_ 3)!3! ÿ%!)14#ÿI 0Jÿ"342!ÿ1ÿ1#ÿ!1 2ÿ43!$
_ e3ÿ1%3235ÿ231!ÿ&2#ÿ"342!ÿIefgJÿ&1) #)1 )2E)1 ÿ4Q!
E3")1 ÿ4Q!ÿ1ÿ&2#ÿ"342!ÿÿ"ÿÿ%43 ÿ1ÿ 5ÿ!ÿ4#$
_ L4Q#ÿ1#ÿ"342!ÿÿ1"3#ÿ%223!34ÿ1431 ÿ1ÿ3ÿ144 !ÿ #ÿ323h
ÿ4Q#ÿ!5!ÿ3!#ÿ1Eÿÿ&2ÿE1ÿE1&#ÿ131 $
_ 1 #ÿ #ÿ41 12ÿ"342!ÿÿÿ3ÿ%32ÿ1ÿ1#3E3#ÿ1ÿE4323ÿ
131 2ÿ41 12ÿ #ÿ#3431 ÿ1Eÿ%234ÿ!E5ÿ 3!$
_ f1 3h#ÿ34Eÿ"!!2!ÿ1ÿ"342!ÿ1Eÿ 5ÿQ3#$
_ O3 ÿ!ÿ!2 !ÿ #ÿ%43 ÿ!!ÿÿÿ21!3"ÿ3ÿ$ÿL3!
#1!ÿ1ÿ342#ÿÿ #2#ÿ1 )!1 ÿÿÿ!43E34225ÿ42##ÿE1ÿ3!
!%#3"3!31 $
_ R3!ÿ #ÿ 331 ÿ1Ei$jÿ423%ÿ1ÿ$
_  331 ÿ1Eÿjÿ423%ÿ1ÿ$ÿe1&"ÿ! ##ÿ3!!ÿ!1 !ÿÿ!43E34225
42##ÿE1ÿ3!ÿ!%#3"3!31 $
_ V4323h#ÿE3!ÿ #ÿ 331 ÿ1Eÿ2!!ÿ i$jÿ423%ÿ342#3 ÿE3!ÿ #
44!!13!ÿ3# 3E3#ÿ!ÿ!!2ÿ&1 !ÿ3ÿ0 2ÿ1#ÿGÿkj*ÿ #ÿ0 2ÿ1#ÿG
kj*jÿ&3ÿÿ431 ÿ1Eÿ! ##)3!!ÿ&1 !ÿ #ÿ 331 ÿ1Eÿ2!!ÿ ÿj
423%ÿÿÿ3!!#ÿ1ÿ1EE34!ÿ  !ÿ1ÿ215!ÿ1Eÿÿ2&ÿ E14 ÿ  45
1ÿ!ÿ  45$
_  5ÿE3ÿ1ÿE3ÿ44!!15ÿÿ3!ÿ#!3 #ÿ1ÿ2 4ÿ21!3"ÿ1l432!$
153ÿ312ÿ ÿÿ22ÿ3!ÿ!"#$
0%23!#ÿ&3ÿ3!!31 ÿ%5ÿ93 ÿ35ÿ01234ÿ 

3235ÿ'(3 ÿ)ÿ*

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
6
6
6

78-#1237ÿ32/ -ÿ2/ÿ%9-1.ÿ1#123ÿ699-&ÿ76ÿ3-&7ÿ2/ÿ7  ÿ1-&7
% /123ÿ-62//ÿ-.1 51-- /ÿ#2/# /ÿ  ÿ-70
9+:3,;ÿ:#9<2.&ÿ192.ÿ2 92-&ÿ26ÿ2292-&ÿ2/ÿ923523 ÿ9-61
/ .1 -ÿ=$,+ ->0
?@AÿCDEEDFGHIÿJKDLAMNGEAÿEOPHM@ÿJEONCDKQRÿOHSÿN@AGKÿORRDMGONASÿQPHGNGDHRTÿUV
QQÿJKDLAMNGEAÿEOPHM@AKRWÿXYAOHÿYOIWXÿKPYYAKÿYPEEANWÿOHSÿRJAMGOENZÿGQJOMNÿ[\]^_
FAOJDHR0
6 +27ÿ96# ÿ41 26ÿ-ÿ/ 612 /ÿ17ÿÿ39.2123ÿ19/7ÿ9ÿÿ-66ÿ3 27ÿ69ÿ41
//16192ÿ9.-13#60
6 `96216#-62/123ÿ3#-ÿ=a>ÿ6#93#ÿ=ab>&ÿ71167ÿ41 267ÿ/9 -ÿ296ÿ12 /
3 2 ÿ41 26ÿ296ÿ/ -1326/ÿ-ÿ9#1116/ÿ9ÿ9269 /ÿ17ÿ6# ÿc/ ÿ c2$931-61-ÿ+3 270
9# ÿ19/ÿ16-ÿ19.ÿÿ6# ÿ26ÿ 9321d/ÿ- 11d/ÿ71167ÿ41 267ÿ#-/ÿ2/
-/ÿ17ÿ6# ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 260
eVfghÿÿÿijk]lm
n6ÿ1-ÿ6# ÿ917ÿ9cÿ6# ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿ6#6ÿ6# ÿÿ 37ÿ2c9 1 ÿ-c3/-&
12 /123ÿ62-27&ÿ9.-13#6&ÿ2/ÿ 92611167ÿ --ÿ12ÿ ÿ69ÿ96 6ÿ6# ÿ11o2 c&ÿ-c67&ÿ1.1ÿ13#6-&ÿ2/ÿ1.1ÿ11 61-ÿ1 c9ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ1-ÿc2/ /&ÿ41/&ÿ9ÿ-/0
eVfgpÿÿÿ^]k]?qrmÿs\tÿijk]lmÿ\?q?s?jrmÿrtus]rt^tv?\
51c921ÿw9.2 26ÿ59/ ÿxÿy(y(=/>ÿ/ -11 -ÿÿ1167ÿz-ÿ341 26ÿ8917ÿ-ÿÿ117
 -/&ÿ21662ÿ/9 26ÿ6#6ÿ12 / -&ÿ6ÿÿ121ÿ6# ÿc992123{
=> +ÿ/ -16192ÿ9cÿ#ÿ67 ÿ9cÿ1167ÿ341 26&ÿ6# ÿ426167ÿ-93#6&ÿ16-ÿ11161-&
% 6/ÿ1c-2&ÿ2/ÿ9/6ÿ/ -16192-ÿc9ÿ6# ÿ2c6ÿ9cÿ6# ÿ1167
341 260
=1> 9# ÿ9--ÿ2/ÿ6#91d/ÿ--ÿc9ÿ2#1#ÿ6# ÿ2ÿ2c9  26ÿ3 27ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ-66
3 27ÿ99--ÿ69ÿ-ÿ#ÿ67 ÿ9cÿ1167ÿ341 260
=> 9# ÿc1-ÿ16ÿ9cÿ#ÿ67 ÿ9cÿ1167ÿ341 26&ÿ12 /123ÿ6# ÿ12161ÿ9-6-ÿ9c
91612123ÿ6# ÿ41 26ÿ2/ÿ-616/ÿ22ÿ9-6-ÿ9cÿ12612123ÿ6# ÿ41 260
=/> 9# ÿ3ÿ2/ÿ9 /ÿ -ÿ6#6ÿ39.2ÿ#ÿ6#91d/ÿ-0
=> 9# ÿ612123&ÿ12 /123ÿ27ÿ9-ÿ41/ÿ17ÿ6# ÿ591--192ÿ92ÿ8  ÿ|cc1 
:62//-ÿ2/ÿ912123&ÿ6#6ÿ-6ÿ1 ÿ9 6/ÿ1 c9ÿ27ÿ9cc1 &ÿ3 26&ÿ9ÿ97
9cÿ6# ÿ2ÿ2c9  26ÿ3 27ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ-66ÿ3 27ÿ1-ÿ92 /ÿ69ÿ-ÿ#ÿ- 1c1ÿ67
9cÿ1167ÿ341 26ÿ69ÿ2-ÿ6# ÿcÿ96 6192ÿ9cÿ6# ÿ11o-ÿ2 c&ÿ-c67&ÿ1.1
13#6-&ÿ2/ÿ1.1ÿ11 61-ÿ2/ÿcÿ/# 2 ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ341 26ÿ-ÿ9170
=c> 9# ÿ #21--ÿ69ÿ 2-ÿ912 ÿ216#ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ341 26ÿ-ÿ917&
12 /123ÿ2#1#ÿ12/  2/ 26ÿ -92-ÿ9ÿ26161-ÿ#.ÿ9.-13#6ÿ6#9167&ÿ2/&ÿ1c
11 &ÿ2#6ÿ 37ÿ2c9 1 ÿ-26192-ÿÿ6ÿ12ÿ ÿc9ÿ.196192-ÿ9cÿ6#
9170
59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ'

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
738 99ÿÿ2ÿ2:9  26ÿ3 27&ÿ6# ÿ9 /-ÿ17ÿ2#1#ÿ 1 -ÿ9:ÿ6# ÿ11ÿ7
31-6ÿ9126-ÿ9ÿ92 2-ÿ9ÿ-116ÿ4 -6192-ÿ196ÿ6# ÿ-ÿ9:ÿ#ÿ- 1:1
67 ÿ9:ÿ1167ÿ341 26&ÿ2/ÿ#92ÿ6# ÿ2ÿ2:9  26ÿ3 27ÿ21ÿ2-ÿ6#6ÿ#
9126&ÿ92 2&ÿ9ÿ4 -6192ÿ 1.-ÿÿ-92-ÿ12ÿÿ61 7ÿ22 0
;<=>?ÿÿÿABCBDEFGÿHIJBKAHLDÿMNNFOBLEDNF
P# ÿ5#1:ÿ9:ÿ891 ÿ-#9/ÿ/ -1326ÿÿ 1 ÿ9:ÿ6#1-ÿ/ 6 26ÿ69ÿ6ÿ-ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26
99/12690ÿP# ÿ-92-111161-ÿ9:ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ99/1269ÿ12 / ÿ16ÿÿ296ÿ116/ÿ69Q
78 + 6123ÿ-ÿ11-92ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ39.2123ÿ19/7ÿ:9ÿ66-ÿ 6/ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ41 26-ÿ9:ÿ6#19170
718 R/ 261:7123ÿ/ 6 26ÿ41 26ÿ6#6ÿ41:1-ÿ-ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ12ÿ6# ÿ26
9----192ÿ9:ÿ6# ÿ 6 26&ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ41 26ÿ6# ÿ 6 26ÿ1262/-ÿ69ÿ41
6#6ÿ41-ÿ9.ÿ17ÿ6# ÿ39.2123ÿ19/70
78 592/6123ÿ2ÿ12.2697ÿ9:ÿÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ6ÿ-6ÿ2270
7/8 59196123ÿ216#ÿ27ÿ1/ÿ3 27ÿ6#6ÿ7ÿ-ÿ1167ÿ 41 26ÿ216#12ÿ6#
S1-/16192ÿ9:ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿ7T9.2 26ÿ59/ ÿUÿV(VW80
78 8123ÿ:9&ÿ-# /123&ÿ2/ÿ 99/126123ÿ6# ÿ22ÿ 92167ÿ 233  26
 6123ÿ69ÿ12 / Q
W0 8111X123ÿ6# ÿ/ 61-ÿ9:ÿ6# ÿ 61230
'0 8123ÿ:9ÿ11ÿ4 -6192-ÿ3/123ÿ6# ÿ/ 6 26Y-ÿ:2/123&ÿ41-16192&
2/ÿ-ÿ9:ÿ41 260
7:8 8123ÿ6# ÿ22ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ96ÿ:9ÿ-11--192ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ5#1:ÿ9:ÿ891
2/ÿ2-123ÿ6#6ÿ6# ÿ96ÿ1-ÿ/ ÿ.11 ÿ92ÿ6# ÿ/ 6 26ÿ2 1-16ÿ7T9.2 26
59/ ÿUÿV(V'80
738 3-611-#123ÿ6# ÿ9 /ÿ:9ÿÿ -92ÿ69ÿ31-6ÿÿ9126ÿ9ÿ92 2&ÿ9ÿ#92ÿ6#6
 -92ÿ7ÿ-116ÿÿ4 -6192ÿ196ÿ6# ÿ-ÿ9:ÿÿ67 ÿ9:ÿ1167ÿ41 26&ÿ2/ÿ#92
6# ÿ 6 26ÿ21ÿ-92/ÿ12ÿÿ61 7ÿ22 0
;<=>ZÿÿÿABCBDEFGÿHIJBKAHLDÿBL[HLDNFG\ÿELLJECÿMN]D]
P# ÿ:992123ÿ92-6166-ÿÿ1-6ÿ9:ÿ41:7123ÿ41 26ÿ:9ÿ6# ÿ 6 26Q
78 ^_7/19ÿ^'ÿ`222 /ÿ+ 1ÿ^7-6ÿ7`+^8aÿ9-6Qÿb'&cccÿ#&ÿ426167Qÿ7W8ÿ`+^
216#ÿÿ-123 599ÿ &ÿ2 13#-ÿ9%0ÿV0dÿ92/-ÿ2/ÿ#-ÿ.1/ 9ÿ 9/123
11161-&ÿ9%0ÿ6(ÿ126-ÿ9:ÿ:13#6ÿ61 ÿ ÿ16670
W0 89-ÿ5ÿP9ÿ1 ÿ/ 97/ÿ2# 2ÿ16-ÿ.12ÿ29/ÿ--1-6ÿ9::1 -ÿ9ÿ121/ 26
92/ -ÿ216#ÿ6# ÿ:992123ÿ-166192-&ÿ2#1#ÿ12 / ÿ16ÿÿ296ÿ116/ÿ69Q
78 S9ÿ91-192ÿ12.-6136192-0
718 -#ÿ:9ÿ1--123ÿ -92-0
78 26ÿ/1--6ÿ23  260
7/8 1 ÿ- 2 ÿ#9693#70
59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ6

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
78 11ÿ-967ÿ2/ÿ19ÿ-.6192ÿ1--192-0
798 12ÿ-92-ÿ69ÿ- 191ÿ4 -6-ÿ99ÿ9&ÿ-66ÿ9ÿ9/ ÿ91ÿ6#916199ÿ91ÿ-92-ÿ2/)9ÿ.261920
'0 +6#91:/ÿ;-ÿ5ÿ<27ÿ--132 /ÿ9 69-ÿ2#9ÿ#.ÿ9 6/ÿ6# ÿ41/
612123ÿ-#ÿ1 ÿ 166/ÿ69ÿ9 6ÿ27ÿ;+=ÿ/123ÿ9./ÿ1--192-0
>0 3% 6/ÿ$19ÿ=2ÿ5ÿ+ ÿ;+=ÿ41 26&ÿ65?ÿ7-0
60 @1-ÿA6ÿ5ÿ+22ÿ12622 ÿ2/ÿ1667ÿ  26ÿ 9-6ÿ19%167ÿBCD(0
D0 E12123ÿ5ÿ+ ÿ 6 26ÿ;+=ÿ9 69-ÿÿ1 2-/ÿ17ÿ6# ÿ@ / ÿ+.16192
+/121-66192ÿ99ÿ;+=ÿ9 61920ÿA2ÿ//16192&ÿ#ÿ9 69ÿ-6ÿ662/ÿÿ6(5
#9ÿ8<=Eÿ 6191/ÿ612123ÿ2/ÿ92ÿ39123ÿ467ÿ6121230
?0 $ 3ÿ2/ÿ89 /ÿ, -ÿ5ÿ;-ÿ1-ÿ -611-# /ÿ2/ ÿ8917ÿC(*&ÿ@++
, 36192ÿF6ÿ5@,ÿ86ÿF(C&ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿ;+=ÿ9170
A6ÿ1-ÿ6# ÿ917ÿ99ÿ6# ÿ058 ÿ69ÿ611:ÿ;+=ÿ927ÿ99ÿ99911ÿ2ÿ299  26
9--&ÿ2/ÿ12ÿÿ22 ÿ6#6ÿ- 6-ÿ6# ÿ1.7ÿ99ÿ9ÿ92167&ÿ-26
69ÿ=66ÿ2/ÿ@ / ÿ20
718 , 123692ÿ*C(ÿ$ --ÿ$ 6#ÿ=#9632&ÿ9-6GÿB6HH&ÿ426167Gÿ768ÿE# ÿ, 123692ÿ*C(
$ --ÿ$ 6#ÿ=#9632ÿ1-ÿ-/ÿ69ÿ/ 97ÿ6# ÿ--ÿ6#ÿF'533 ÿ= 5=9IÿJ 213
,92/ÿÿ69ÿÿ/1-62 ÿ99ÿCDÿ9 60ÿE# ÿ23 ÿ99ÿ6# ÿ2 92ÿ-7-6ÿ# -ÿ69ÿ12612
- ÿ1 62 2ÿ9991 -ÿ2/ÿÿ-- 6ÿ/123ÿ6# ÿ1 /17ÿ99ÿ6# ÿ6#6ÿ2#1#ÿ1ÿ121 ÿ99ÿ 5-61920
F0 F'5K3 ÿ 96 #ÿJ 213ÿ,92/&ÿ9-6GÿBD&ÿ426167GÿDD?0ÿ+ÿ--ÿ6#'06512#
F'533 ÿ-#9632ÿ92/ÿ91123ÿÿ11-61ÿ911 ÿ13ÿ91 /ÿ216#ÿ6(ÿ3-ÿ99ÿ /
-#96ÿ6ÿÿ. 9167ÿ99ÿ'C(5'H(ÿ9 6ÿ ÿ- 92/ÿ7@8=80ÿ 96 #ÿ= ÿ=9Iÿ92/ÿ/1-#3 /ÿ99ÿÿ/ /16/ÿF'533 ÿ-#9632ÿ6#6ÿ1-ÿ/1-61231-#1 ÿ17
2ÿ923 ÿ166ÿ-69Iÿ2/ÿ99ÿ310ÿE#1-ÿ92/ÿ9.1/ -ÿ 6ÿ2/ÿ99 61.
 992 ÿ2# 2ÿ91/ÿ99ÿ6# ÿ9./ÿ/1-62 ÿ99ÿ296ÿ92 ÿ6#2ÿ91.ÿ7D8
9 60ÿE# ÿ%1ÿ99 61.ÿ23 ÿ99ÿ6#1-ÿ216192ÿ1-ÿÿ69ÿCDÿ9 6ÿ99ÿ6#
63 60ÿE# ÿ-9Iÿ92/ÿ1-ÿ12ÿ16-ÿ/ 97/ÿ-66ÿ1 /167ÿ92ÿ%16123ÿ6#
1 0ÿA6ÿ/9 -ÿ296ÿ41ÿÿ121ÿ23 ÿ69ÿL299/Lÿ9ÿL-6111:0LÿE# ÿ= 5
=9Iÿ1-ÿ2ÿ 9/721ÿ9M 610ÿN92 .&ÿ 7ÿ1-ÿ 61.ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ-#9632&
1 ÿ236#&ÿ2.192 26ÿ92/16192-&ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ9 690ÿE# ÿ-9Iÿ92/ÿ1-ÿ.7
 60ÿN92 .&ÿ99 61.2 --ÿ/  2/-ÿ92ÿ27ÿ.11 -&ÿ-#ÿ-ÿ/1-62 &
96#123&ÿ-66&ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ9126ÿ2# ÿ6# ÿ9M 61ÿ16-0
'0 89-ÿ5ÿE9ÿ116ÿ6# ÿ-6192ÿ99ÿ92916ÿ2# ÿ97 26ÿ99ÿ6#ÿ99 ÿ19#1116/ÿ9ÿ2/ -11 0
>0 +6#91:/ÿ;-ÿ5ÿ=166192-ÿ99ÿ-ÿ99ÿ6# ÿ --ÿ 6#ÿ2 92ÿ-7-6-ÿ7
12 / &ÿ16ÿÿ296ÿ116/ÿ69G
78 - 95/ -661.&ÿ/23 9-ÿ2/)9ÿ9161.ÿ12/1.1/-0
718 196)92/ÿ9269ÿ2/ÿ1.1ÿ2-6ÿ121/ 26-0
78 1-62 -ÿ2# ÿÿ661ÿ/.263 ÿ2ÿ1 ÿ91612 /0
59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ6

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
7/8 962617ÿ.119-ÿ21-0
78 612123ÿ%1--ÿ9ÿ9./ÿ/ 92-66192-0
90 3% 6/ÿ$1:ÿ;2ÿ5ÿ, 123692ÿ*<(ÿ$ --ÿ$ 6#ÿ;#96325ÿ'6ÿ7-=ÿ :> #
;9?ÿ,92/ÿ5ÿ@9ÿ1-6/ÿ%16192ÿ/60
60 A1-ÿB6ÿ5ÿ+22ÿ12622 ÿ2/ÿ612123ÿ9-6-ÿÿ9%167ÿCD'6
:9ÿ#ÿ-#96320
E0 >12123ÿ5ÿ+ ÿ9::1 -ÿÿ612 /ÿ12ÿ6# ÿD'ÿ33 ÿ --ÿ 6#ÿ-#9632ÿ-ÿÿ -6#ÿ96192ÿ17ÿ125-.1 ÿ612123ÿ17ÿ8F;>ÿ 61:1/ÿ12-669-0
<0 $ 3ÿ2/ÿ89 /ÿ, -ÿ5ÿG-ÿ1-ÿ-611-# /ÿ2/ ÿ8917ÿ<(*ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ0123
5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿ8917ÿH((ÿ2/ÿH(*0ÿB6ÿ1-ÿ6# ÿ917ÿ9:ÿ6# ÿ058 ÿ69ÿ611I
6# ÿ--ÿ6#ÿ-#9632ÿ927ÿ:9ÿ9::11ÿ2ÿ2:9  26ÿ9--&ÿ2/ÿ-26
69ÿ;66ÿ2/ÿA / ÿ2&ÿ12 /123ÿ6#9-ÿ3/123ÿ6# ÿ-ÿ9:ÿ:9 0
<(*060Dÿÿÿ8,F8F;3 ÿB$B>+,Jÿ3KGB83@>ÿ+5KGB;B>BF@ÿ)ÿ+@@G+$ÿ5F;>;
># ÿ:992123ÿ92-6166-ÿÿ1-6ÿ9:ÿ41:7123ÿL1167ÿ41 26Lÿ99-/ÿ:9ÿ41-16192ÿ/123
AJ'(''5'Hÿ:9ÿ6# ÿ 6 26M
78 ;?7/19ÿN'ÿG222 /ÿ+ 1ÿ;7-6ÿ7G+;8=ÿ9-6MÿCD9&9OOÿ#&ÿ426167Mÿ7D8ÿG+;
216#ÿÿ99&ÿ12:/&ÿ2/ÿI99ÿ &ÿ2 13#-ÿ9%0ÿD6ÿ92/-ÿ2/ÿ#-ÿ.1/ 9
 9/123ÿ11161-&ÿ9%0ÿ96ÿ126-ÿ9:ÿ52 6# ÿ:13#6ÿ61 ÿ ÿ16670
D0 89-ÿ5ÿ>9ÿ1 ÿ/ 97/ÿ2# 2ÿ16-ÿ.12ÿ29/ÿ--1-6ÿ9::1 -ÿ9ÿ121/ 26
92/ -ÿ216#ÿ6# ÿ:992123ÿ-166192-&ÿ2#1#ÿ12 / ÿ16ÿÿ296ÿ116/ÿ69M
78 P9ÿ91-192ÿ12.-6136192-0
718 -#ÿ:9ÿ1--123ÿ -92-0
78 26ÿ/1--6ÿ23  260
7/8 1 ÿ- 2 ÿ#9693#70
78 11ÿ-:67ÿ2/ÿ1:ÿ-.6192ÿ1--192-0
7:8 12ÿ-92-ÿ69ÿ- 1:1ÿ4 -6-ÿ:9ÿ9&ÿ-66ÿ9ÿ:/ ÿ:1ÿ6#9161:9ÿ:1ÿ-92-ÿ2/)9ÿ.261920
'0 +6#91I/ÿG-ÿ5ÿF27ÿ--132 /ÿ9 69-ÿ2#9ÿ#.ÿ9 6/ÿ6# ÿ41/
612123ÿ-#ÿ1 ÿ 166/ÿ69ÿ9 6ÿ27ÿG+;ÿ/123ÿ9./ÿ1--192-0
H0 3% 6/ÿ$1:ÿ;2ÿ5ÿ+ ÿG+;ÿ41 26&ÿ95Eÿ7-0
90 A1-ÿB6ÿ5ÿ+22ÿ12622 ÿ2/ÿ1667ÿ  26ÿ 9-6ÿ19%167ÿC<6(0
60 >12123ÿ5ÿ+ ÿ 6 26ÿG+;ÿ9 69-ÿÿ1 2-/ÿ17ÿ6# ÿA / ÿ+.16192
+/121-66192ÿ:9ÿG+;ÿ9 61920ÿB2ÿ//16192&ÿ#ÿ9 69ÿ-6ÿ662/ÿÿ9(5
#9ÿ8F;>ÿ 61:1/ÿ612123ÿ2/ÿ9239123ÿ467ÿ6121230
E0 $ 3ÿ2/ÿ89 /ÿ, -ÿ5ÿG-ÿ1-ÿ -611-# /ÿ2/ ÿ8917ÿ<(*&ÿA++
, 36192ÿD9ÿ5A,ÿ86ÿD(<&ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿG+;ÿ9170
59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ6

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
76ÿ1-ÿ6# ÿ917ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ058 ÿ69ÿ6119ÿ:+;ÿ927ÿ89ÿ98811ÿ2ÿ289  26
9--&ÿ2/ÿ12ÿÿ22 ÿ6#6ÿ- 6-ÿ6# ÿ1.7ÿ98ÿ9ÿ92167&ÿ-26
69ÿ;66ÿ2/ÿ< / ÿ20
=1> , 123692ÿ*?(ÿ$ --ÿ$ 6#ÿ;#9632&ÿ9-6@ÿABCC&ÿ426167@ÿ=B>ÿD# ÿ, 123692ÿ*?(
$ --ÿ$ 6#ÿ;#9632ÿ1-ÿ-/ÿ69ÿ/ 97ÿ6# ÿ--ÿ6#ÿE'533 ÿ; 5;9FÿG 213
,92/ÿÿ69ÿÿ/1-62 ÿ98ÿ?Hÿ8 60ÿD# ÿ23 ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ2 92ÿ-7-6ÿ# -ÿ69ÿ12612
- ÿ1 62 2ÿ9881 -ÿ2/ÿÿ-- 6ÿ/123ÿ6# ÿ1 /17ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ6#6ÿ2#1#ÿ1ÿ121 ÿ98ÿ 5-61920
E0 89-ÿ5ÿD9ÿ116ÿ6# ÿ-6192ÿ98ÿ92816ÿ2# ÿ97 26ÿ98ÿ6#ÿ89 ÿ19#1116/ÿ9ÿ2/ -11 0
'0 +6#919/ÿ:-ÿ5ÿ;166192-ÿ89ÿ-ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ --ÿ 6#ÿ2 92ÿ-7-6-ÿ7
12 / &ÿ16ÿÿ296ÿ116/ÿ69@
=> - 85/ -661.&ÿ/23 9-ÿ2/)9ÿ9161.ÿ12/1.1/-0
=1> 196)92/ÿ9269ÿ2/ÿ1.1ÿ2-6ÿ121/ 26-0
=> 1-62 -ÿ2# ÿÿ661ÿ/.263 ÿ2ÿ1 ÿ91612 /0
=/> 962617ÿ.119-ÿ21-0
=> 612123ÿ%1--ÿ9ÿ9./ÿ/ 92-66192-0
I0 3% 6/ÿ$18ÿ;2ÿ5ÿ, 123692ÿ*?(ÿ$ --ÿ$ 6#ÿ;#96325ÿ'Hÿ7-Jÿ 8D #
;9Fÿ,92/ÿ5ÿK9ÿ1-6/ÿ%16192ÿ/60
B0 <1-ÿ76ÿ5ÿ+22ÿ12622 ÿ2/ÿ612123ÿ9-6-ÿÿ9%167ÿAE'H
89ÿ#ÿ-#96320
H0 D12123ÿ5ÿ+ ÿ9881 -ÿÿ612 /ÿ12ÿ6# ÿE'ÿ33 ÿ --ÿ 6#ÿ-#9632ÿ-ÿÿ -6#ÿ96192ÿ17ÿ125-.1 ÿ612123ÿ17ÿ8L;Dÿ 6181/ÿ12-669-0
=> $ 3ÿ2/ÿ89 /ÿ, -ÿ5ÿ:-ÿ1-ÿ-611-# /ÿ2/ ÿ8917ÿ?(*ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ0123ÿ5167
891 ÿ 6 26ÿ8917ÿI((ÿ2/ÿI(*0
=/> 76ÿ1-ÿ6# ÿ917ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ058 ÿ69ÿ6119ÿ6# ÿ --ÿ 6#ÿ-#9632ÿ927ÿ89ÿ98811ÿ2
289  26ÿ9--&ÿ2/ÿ-26ÿ69ÿ;66ÿ2/ÿ< / ÿ2&ÿ12 /123ÿ6#93/123ÿ6# ÿ-ÿ98ÿ89 0
MNOPQÿÿÿSTTUVWSX
D# ÿ5#18ÿ98ÿ891 ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ6#919/ÿ/ -132 ÿ-#ÿ91612ÿ9.ÿ89ÿ6# ÿ39.2123ÿ19/7ÿ17
27ÿ98ÿ2ÿ9/122 ÿ/96123ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ9170ÿ+-ÿ6ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ9.ÿ9 --&ÿ6#
5#18ÿ98ÿ891 ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ6#919/ÿ/ -132 ÿ-#ÿ2-ÿ6# ÿ99-/ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ917ÿ1-1166/ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ39.2123ÿ19/7ÿ2/ÿ1-ÿ.11 ÿ92ÿ6# ÿ/ 6 26ÿ2 1-16ÿ6ÿ-6ÿI(ÿ/7-ÿ19
69ÿ27ÿ11ÿ# 123ÿ92 2123ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ6ÿ1-- ÿ=Y9.2 26ÿ59/ ÿZÿ?(?E>0ÿD#
1167ÿ41 26ÿ917ÿ-6ÿ1 ÿ9./ÿ17ÿ6# ÿ39.2123ÿ19/7ÿ19ÿ69ÿ233123ÿ12ÿ27ÿ98ÿ6#
8992123ÿ=Y9.2 26ÿ59/ ÿZÿ?(?E>@
=> , 4 -6123ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ/ ÿ.11 ÿ-26ÿ69ÿE(ÿ:;5ÿZÿ'H?60
59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ6

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
718 9 :123ÿ;2/-ÿ;9ÿ1167ÿ41 26&ÿ12 /123ÿ16ÿ296ÿ116/ÿ69ÿ7123ÿ;9ÿÿ326&
-9116123ÿ9ÿ 6123ÿ1.6&ÿ9&ÿ-66&ÿ9ÿ;/ ÿ;2/-&ÿ125:12/ÿ/926192-&ÿ9ÿ96# 
/926192-ÿ9ÿ62-;-0
78 + 41123ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ16# ÿ 2 267ÿ9ÿ6917&ÿ12 /123ÿ17ÿ1992123
9ÿ-1230
7/8 59196123ÿ216#ÿ296# ÿ2ÿ2;9  26ÿ3 27ÿ12ÿ6# ÿ/ 97 26ÿ9ÿ96# ÿ-ÿ9;
1167ÿ41 26ÿ216#12ÿ6# ÿ<1-/16192ÿ9;ÿ6#1-ÿ/ 6 260
78 =-123ÿ27ÿ2 2ÿ9ÿ%1-6123ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ;9ÿÿ9-&ÿ12ÿÿ22 &ÿ9ÿ17ÿÿ -92
296ÿ.19-7ÿ9./ÿ17ÿ6# ÿ39.2123ÿ19/70
7;8 99116123ÿ9ÿ-92/123ÿ69ÿÿ99-ÿ;9&ÿ9ÿ26123ÿ1269ÿ2ÿ3  26ÿ216#&ÿ27ÿ96# 
 -92ÿ9ÿ26167ÿ69ÿ- :ÿ;2/-ÿ;9&ÿ7ÿ69ÿ 1.&ÿ41&ÿ-&ÿ9ÿ9196ÿ12ÿ6#
-ÿ9;ÿ1167ÿ41 260
738 + 41123ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ6#93#ÿ27ÿ 2-ÿ296ÿ9.1/ /ÿ19.0
># ÿ5#1;ÿ9;ÿ891 ÿ#-ÿ6#9167ÿ69ÿ7ÿ;9ÿ;2/123ÿ19ÿ69ÿ91612123ÿ921ÿ9.ÿ12ÿ6# ÿ9;ÿ%13 26ÿ1-62 -0ÿ># ÿ 6 26ÿ-#ÿ91612ÿ921ÿ9.ÿ-ÿ-992ÿ-ÿ611 0
?@AB?ÿÿÿDEEFGHIJKHEIÿLHKMÿEKMNFÿOPFHQGHDKHEIQ
1167ÿ41 26ÿ-#9/ÿ296ÿ1 ÿ-/ÿ17ÿ27ÿ96# ÿ2ÿ2;9  26ÿ3 27ÿ9ÿ 1 ÿ12ÿ6#1<1-/16192ÿ2 --ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ1-ÿ9./ÿ;9ÿ-ÿ12ÿ 9/2 ÿ216#ÿ6#1-ÿ9170
?@ABAÿÿÿJIIPJRÿFNSEFK
># ÿ5#1;ÿ9;ÿ891 ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ6#91T/ÿ/ -132 ÿ-#ÿ-116ÿÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ96ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ5167
5921ÿ;9ÿ#ÿ67 ÿ9;ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ9./ÿ216#12ÿ92 ÿ7ÿ9;ÿ9.&ÿ2/ÿ227
6# ;6ÿ;9ÿ-ÿ923ÿ-ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ1-ÿ.11 ÿ;9ÿ-ÿ7U9.2 26ÿ59/ ÿVÿ6(6'80
># ÿ5#1;ÿ9;ÿ891 ÿ9ÿ6# ÿ6#91T/ÿ/ -132 ÿ-#9/ÿ-9ÿ:ÿ#ÿ22ÿ1167ÿ41 26
96ÿ117ÿ.11 ÿ92ÿ6# ÿ/ 6 26ÿ2 1-16ÿ;9ÿ-ÿ923ÿ-ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ1.11 ÿ;9ÿ-0
># ÿ96ÿ-#ÿ12 / ÿÿ12;96192ÿ41/ÿ17ÿU9.2 26ÿ59/ ÿVÿ6(6'ÿ;9ÿ6# ÿ /123
 2/ÿ7ÿ;9ÿ#ÿ67 ÿ9;ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ12ÿ/ 6 26ÿ12.26970
W0 +ÿ-7ÿ9;ÿ#92ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ2-ÿ-/ÿ2/ÿ6# ÿ9-ÿ9;ÿ16-ÿ-0
'0 +ÿ-7ÿ9;ÿ27ÿ9126-ÿ9ÿ92 2-ÿ 1./ÿ92 2123ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 260
X0 ># ÿ-6-ÿ9;ÿ27ÿ1262ÿ/16-&ÿ27ÿ12;96192ÿ196ÿ.196192-ÿ9;ÿ6# ÿ1167
41 26ÿ-ÿ917&ÿ2/ÿ27ÿ6192-ÿ6:2ÿ12ÿ-92-0
Y0 ># ÿ696ÿ22ÿ9-6ÿ;9ÿ #ÿ67 ÿ9;ÿ1167ÿ 41 26&ÿ12 /123ÿ41-16192&
 -922 &ÿ612123&ÿ62-966192&ÿ12622 &ÿ-693 &ÿ3/ &ÿ2/ÿ96# ÿ9239123
9-6-&ÿ2/ÿ;9ÿ2#6ÿ-9 ÿ;2/-ÿ21ÿ1 ÿ9.1/ /ÿ;9ÿ6# ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ12ÿ6#
 2/ÿ7ÿ;992123ÿ-11--192ÿ9;ÿ6# ÿ22ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ960
Z0 ># ÿ426167ÿ9----/ÿ;9ÿ#ÿ67 ÿ9;ÿ1167ÿ41 260
59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ6

0123ÿ5167ÿ89
1 ÿ 6 26
8917ÿ2
ÿ !"
60 78ÿ6# ÿ2ÿ289  26ÿ3 27ÿ1262/-ÿ69ÿ41ÿ//16192ÿ1167ÿ41 26ÿ12ÿ6#
2 %6ÿ7&ÿ6# ÿ426167ÿ-93#6ÿ89ÿ#ÿ67 ÿ98ÿ1167ÿ41 260
9:;<=ÿÿÿ?@AABCDEFÿGCHIHGAGCE
J16#12ÿK(ÿ/7-ÿ98ÿ-1166123ÿ2/ÿ117ÿ -123ÿ6# ÿ22ÿ96&ÿ6# ÿ 6 26ÿ-#ÿ#9/
6ÿ -6ÿ92 ÿ2 5111L/ÿ2/ÿ92.21267ÿ96/ÿ92167ÿ233  26ÿ 6123&ÿ6ÿ2#1#
6# ÿ 6 26ÿ-#9/ÿ/1---ÿ6# ÿ96ÿ2/ÿ-92/ÿ69ÿ11ÿ4 -6192-ÿ3/123ÿ6# ÿ82/123&
41-16192&ÿ9ÿ-ÿ98ÿ1167ÿ41 260
9:;<M:ÿÿÿ?@ANODIC?G
P# ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿ1-ÿ9166/ÿ69ÿ-92/123ÿ69ÿ9126-&ÿ92 2-&ÿ2/
4 -6192-ÿ 1./ÿ12ÿÿ61 7ÿ22 0ÿ 1 -ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ11ÿ21-#123ÿ69ÿQÿÿ9126&ÿ-Q
ÿ4 -6192ÿ9ÿ%--ÿÿ92 2ÿ2ÿ/9ÿ-9ÿ17ÿ27ÿ98ÿ6# ÿ8992123ÿ 2-R
S0 T1ÿ1ÿ69RÿQ12316791 UQ12316709
'0 T1ÿ#92 ÿÿ69Rÿ*KS5K*V5W*W*
K0 T1ÿ1ÿ-26ÿ69Rÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26ÿWSVÿX--66ÿY6 6&ÿ0123ÿ5167&ÿ5+ÿZKZK(
W0 T1ÿ12ÿ -92ÿ17ÿ-92/123ÿ69ÿ6# ÿ19.ÿ//--

59713#6ÿ$ %19&ÿ$$5ÿ'('')(')'*&ÿ+ ÿ,13#6-ÿ, -./0
811-# /ÿ216#ÿ 1--192ÿ17ÿ0123ÿ5167ÿ891 ÿ 6 26

1167ÿ341 26ÿ5ÿ*

Item No. 11(A)
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

MIKE HOWARD, FINANCE DIRECTOR

RE:

CONSIDERATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF THE CITY AND CDA
SUCCESSOR AGENCY’S AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the City Council and the Board of Directors of the King
City CDA Successor Agency accept the City and CDA Successor Agency’s
Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021.
BACKGROUND:
The State of California Government code (sections 25250 & 25253) require all
general-purpose local government to issue an annual report on the financial
position and activities of that government. The report must be presented in
conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and must be
audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants (CPA) in
conformance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAGAS). The goal of
the audit by an independent firm is to provide reasonable assurance that the
accounting transactions, practices, and procedures result in fair presentation of
the financial position of the organization. In addition, the audit provides the same
type of assurance about management’s assertions about the adequacy of
internal accounting controls to safeguard the assets of the entities.
DISCUSSION:
The independent auditor has rendered an unqualified audit opinion indicating that
the City and Successor Agency are materially in compliance and has accounting
records that properly reflect the financial position of those entities.
The final numbers for FY 2020-21 demonstrate positive movement for the City,
particularly in the General Fund. The General Fund ended the Fiscal Year with a
positive fund balance for the first time in over a decade! This was possible
through constant expenditure control, higher than anticipated sales tax revenues

Exhibit 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King City, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City, California, (the City) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
Opinions
As discussed in Note 13, the City has not estimated and reported a liability for landfill post-closure care costs or
included the related note disclosures as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
In our opinion, except as noted in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City, California, as of June 30, 2021,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
901 “N” STREET, SUITE 104

FIREBAUGH, CALIFORNIA 93622

PHONE 559.659.3045

FAX 559.659.0615

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison
information on pages 41 through 43 and the Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and
the Schedule of Contributions pages 44 and 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.
Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 15, 2022, on our
consideration of the City of King City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of
King City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

March 15, 2022
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Total

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Notes receivable
Capital assets (net of allowance
for depreciation)
Total assets

$

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deposits
Compensated absences
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for long-term notes receivable
Restricted for specific projects and programs
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

See accompanying notes.

$

3,311,662 $
123,564
1,981,267
750,693
3,000,000

10,209,014 $
288,475
1,285
-

13,520,676
412,039
1,981,267
751,978
3,000,000

12,430,478
21,597,664

9,344,782
19,843,556

21,775,260
41,441,220

1,428,583

207,020

1,635,603

754,443
273,333
345,373

117,802
-

872,245
273,333
345,373

130,514
851,214
6,471,599
8,826,476

274,222
4,975,622
112,926
5,480,572

404,736
5,826,836
6,584,525
14,307,048

260,486

4,777

265,263

11,448,750
2,300,221
3,000,000
326,587
(3,136,273)
13,939,285 $

4,094,938
10,470,289
14,565,227 $

15,543,688
2,300,221
3,000,000
326,587
7,334,016
28,504,512
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Net Revenue/(Expense) and Changes in Net Position
Program Revenue

Functions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Debt service
Interest expense
Total governmental activities

Expense

$

Business-type activities
Sewer
Power
Total business-type activities
$

1,121,400
4,959,230
2,649,574
467,692
1,967,940

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

$

318,256
151,608
17,923
116,707
515,309

$

Primary Government
Capital
Grants and
Contributions

221,969
678,640
677,801
2,521
249,695

$

Governmental
Activities

274,315
305,785
175,296
-

40,038
11,205,874

1,119,803

1,830,626

755,396

2,053,696
2,591,406
4,645,102

2,927,632
2,572,349
5,499,981

-

-

15,850,976

6,619,784

$

1,830,626

$

(306,860) $
(4,128,982)
(1,648,065)
(173,168)
(1,202,936)

- $
-

(306,860)
(4,128,982)
(1,648,065)
(173,168)
(1,202,936)

(40,038)
(7,500,049)

-

(40,038)
(7,500,049)

-

755,396

Total

873,936
(19,057)
854,879

873,936
(19,057)
854,879

(7,500,049)

854,879

(6,645,170)

General Revenue
Property taxes
Franchise taxes
Sales taxes
Transient occupancy taxes
Utility users tax
Business licenses
Motor vehicle in-lieu
Investment income
Gain on sale of property
Other revenues
Transfers
Total general revenue and transfers

1,122,869
883,632
4,413,799
475,400
341,970
309,297
1,024,967
94,746
787,108
118,727
300,000
9,872,515

12,668
(300,000)
(287,332)

1,122,869
883,632
4,413,799
475,400
341,970
309,297
1,024,967
107,414
787,108
118,727
9,585,183

Change in Net Position

2,372,466

567,547

2,940,013

Total primary government

$

$

Business-Type
Activities

Net Position
Beginning of year
End of year

See accompanying notes.

13,997,680

11,566,819
$

13,939,285

$

14,565,227

25,564,499
$

28,504,512
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CITY OF KING CITY
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

General
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Due from other funds
Notes receivable
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND FUND BALANCE
Accounts payable and accrued expense
$
Deposits
Due to other funds
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred loans
Total deferred inflows of resources
FUND BALANCE
Restricted
Circulation improvements
Capital improvement projects
Public safety
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance

See accompanying notes.

$

Development
Impact Fees

HOME Grant

540,310
105,201
1,007,113
249
709,282
2,362,155

323,707
273,333
597,040

$

$

$

750,000
3,000,000
3,750,000

-

$

$

$

Other
Governmental
Funds

Measure X

1,678,258
239
1,678,497

$

9,437
13,395
22,832

$

$

425,771
134,108
60
559,939

90,831
90,831

-

3,750,000
3,750,000

-

-

1,765,115
1,765,115

-

1,655,665
1,655,665

469,108
469,108

2,362,155

$

3,750,000

$

1,678,497

$

559,939

$

$

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

667,323
18,363
840,046
145
1,525,877

$

330,468
695,887
1,026,355

$

$

-

1,525,877

754,443
273,333
709,282
1,737,058

3,750,000
3,750,000

42,296
133,152
326,587
(2,513)
499,522
$

3,311,662
123,564
1,981,267
750,693
709,282
3,000,000
9,876,468

42,296
2,257,925
326,587
1,762,602
4,389,410
$

9,876,468
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CITY OF KING CITY
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE TO NET POSITION
OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
JUNE 30, 2021

Total governmental fund balances

$

4,389,410

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

12,430,478

Certain revenues in Governmental Funds are deferred because they are
not collected within the prescribed time period after fiscal year end.
Those revenues are recognized on the accrual basis in Governmental
Activities

3,750,000

Net pension liability applicable to Governmental Activities are not due
and payable in the current period and accordingly is not reportable in
the Governmental Funds

(6,471,599)

Deferred inflows/outflows of resources related to net pension liability, represent
an acquisition/consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow/outflow of resources
(revenue/expenditure) until that time

1,168,097

Governmental long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds

(981,728)

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the Governmental Funds

(345,373)

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes.

$

13,939,285
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

HOME Grant

General
Revenue
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Licenses, permits and impact fees
Fines and forfeitures
Interest and rent
Other
Total revenue

$

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt Service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Revenue over/(under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources/(Uses)
Sale of property
Transfers in/(out) - net
Total other financing sources/(uses)
Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

See accompanying notes.

$

7,278,253
728,064
15,818
1,032,655
31,344
23,019
213,585
9,322,738

Development
Impact Fees

$

Other
Governmental
Funds

Measure X

Total
Governmental
Funds

- $
-

- $
23,272
284,053
1,944
309,269

460,858 $
242
461,100

675,164
1,524,353
101,497
758
6,350
2,308,122

988,430
4,390,814
804,415
260,999
1,775,806
-

-

81,309
21,848
158,033

113,539
-

141,245
1,093,969
25,296
158,947
407,400

988,430
4,532,059
2,093,232
286,295
1,956,601
565,433

79,350
29,542
8,329,356

-

261,190

113,539

21,763
10,496
1,859,116

101,113
40,038
10,563,201

993,382

-

48,079

347,561

449,006

1,838,028

787,108
428,772

-

-

-

(128,772)

787,108
300,000

1,215,880

-

-

-

(128,772)

1,087,108

2,209,262

-

48,079

347,561

320,234

2,925,136

(444,147)
1,765,115 $

- $

1,607,586
1,655,665

$

121,547
469,108

$

179,288
499,522

$

$

8,414,275
2,252,417
140,587
1,316,708
31,344
25,963
219,935
12,401,229

1,464,274
4,389,410
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CITY OF KING CITY
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds

$

2,925,136

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the Governmental Funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position

101,113

Revenues in the statement of activities that do no provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds

90,000

Governmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets are capitalized as an
asset and depreciated over the period of service

565,433

Pension expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the Governmental Funds

(412,667)

Compensated absence costs in the Statement of Activities does not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not
reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds

92,799

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Statement of
Activities, but they do not require the use of current financial resources.
Therefore, depreciation expense is not recorded as expenditures in
Governmental Funds
Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes.

(989,348)
$

2,372,466
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2021
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
Sewer

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Total current assets

$

Community Power

Total

9,988,323 $
288,475
1,285
10,278,083

220,691 $
220,691

10,209,014
288,475
1,285
10,498,774

9,344,782
9,344,782
19,622,865

220,691

9,344,782
9,344,782
19,843,556

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

207,020

-

207,020

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expense
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

74,272
274,222
348,494

43,530
43,530

117,802
274,222
392,024

4,975,622
112,926
5,437,042

43,530

4,975,622
112,926
5,480,572

4,777

-

4,777

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
(net of allowance for depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt
Net pension liability
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

See accompanying notes.

$

4,094,938
10,293,128
14,388,066 $

177,161
177,161 $

4,094,938
10,470,289
14,565,227
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSE, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION –
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
Sewer

Operating Revenue
Charges for services
Total operating revenue

Community Power

Total

2,927,632 $
2,927,632

2,572,349 $
2,572,349

5,499,981
5,499,981

Operating Expense
Contractual services and utilities
Personnel
Supplies and materials
Depreciation
Total operating expense

756,656
207,592
517,396
322,797
1,804,441

2,581,875
2,581,875

3,338,531
207,592
517,396
322,797
4,386,316

Operating income/(loss)

1,123,191

$

Nonoperating Revenue/(Expense)
Interest income
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenue/(expense)
Net income/(loss) before transfers

Net Position
Beginning of year
End of year

See accompanying notes.

(9,531)
(9,531)

12,668
(258,786)
(246,118)

886,604

(19,057)

867,547

586,604

Change in Net Position

$

1,113,665

12,668
(249,255)
(236,587)

(300,000)

Operating Transfers In/(Out)

(9,526)

13,801,462
14,388,066 $

(19,057)
196,218
177,161 $

(300,000)
567,547
13,997,680
14,565,227
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
Sewer

Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments for contractual services and utilities
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

$

Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment
Bond proceeds
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing activities
Investing Activities
Interest received
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

$

Total

2,572,349 $
(2,603,201)
-

5,424,749
(3,374,899)
(388,571)
(517,396)

(30,852)

1,143,883

735,798

-

735,798

735,798

-

735,798

(76,342)
4,012,670
(4,022,762)
(111,148)

(79,294)
(9,531)

(76,342)
4,012,670
(4,102,056)
(120,679)

(197,582)

(88,825)

(286,407)

17,706

-

17,706

17,706

-

17,706

1,730,657

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash

See accompanying notes.

2,852,400 $
(771,698)
(388,571)
(517,396)
1,174,735

Non-capital Financial Activities
Cash received from (paid to) other funds
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities

Cash
Beginning of year
End of year

Community Power

8,257,666
9,988,323 $

(119,677)
340,368
220,691

1,610,980

$

8,598,034
10,209,014
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW - PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Fund
Sewer

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflow of Resources
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
and Accrued Expense
Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Operating Activities

See accompanying notes.

$

Community Power

1,123,191 $

322,797
(181,519)
(75,232)
(4,513)
5,053
(15,042)
$

1,174,735 $

(9,526) $

(21,326)
(30,852) $

Total

1,113,665

322,797
(181,519)
(75,232)
(4,513)
5,053
(36,368)
1,143,883
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND – SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30, 2021

Assets
Cash and investments
Cash and investments
Cash and investments with fiscal agent
Accounts Receivable
Total assets

$

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Long-term debt
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities
Net Position
Held in trust for other governments

See accompanying notes.

1,034,722
4,569,326
1,800
5,605,848

4,331
93,543
913,634
10,198,166
11,209,674

$

(5,603,826)
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CITY OF KING CITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND – SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30, 2021

Additions
Property taxes
Investment earnings and other
Total additions

$

Deductions
Administrative costs
Interest and fiscal agency expenses of former redevelopment agency
Total deductions

172,905
1,136,177
1,309,082

Change In Net Position
Net Position
Beginning of year
End of year

See accompanying notes.

833,079
35,076
868,155

(440,927)

$

(5,162,899)
(5,603,826)
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements of the City of King City (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
Reporting Entity
The City of King City, State of California (the "City"), was incorporated as a general law city in 1911. In
June 2010, the voters of the City approved a Charter, which gives the City Council greater self-rule. The
City is governed by a City Council of five members. The City's major operations include public safety;
highways and streets; sewer services; parks and recreation; building inspection; public improvements;
planning and zoning, and general administrative services.
Basis of Presentation – Fund Accounting
Government-Wide Financial Statements - The Government-Wide Financial Statements (the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information of all of the nonfiduciary activities of
the primary government and its component units. For the most part, eliminations have been made to
minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the
governmental and business-type activities of the City and between the City and its discretely presented
component unit. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and inter-governmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely significantly on fees charged to
external parties.
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and are
clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Net position are restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are imposed
by constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Internally imposed designations of resources are not
presented as restricted net position. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,
generally, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements - The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide
information about the City’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category
- governmental, proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental funds are separately aggregated and reported as non-major funds.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used for all financial
resources except those required legally, or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another
fund. Generally, the General Fund is used to account for those traditional governmental services of the
City, such as police and fire protection, planning and general administrative services.
HOME Grant Fund – The fund is used to account for receipts and expenditures for the Home Investment
Partnerships Program for the City to fund a wide range of activities including building, buying, and/or
rehabilitating affordable housing for rent or homeownership or providing direct rental assistance to lowincome people.
Development Impact Fees Fund – The fund is used to account for mitigation fees received from new
construction which are to be used according to the City’s approved Master Facilities Plan.
Measure X Fund – The fund is used to account for the City’s Transportation Safety and Investment Plan
activities, which include transportation safety and mobility projects such as the Bishop Street project and
the slurry application project.
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:
Sewer Fund – The fund accounts for the maintenance, operation and capital improvements of the
municipal sewage system. Financing is provided by user fees from residences, businesses, and industries.
Community Power Fund – The fund provides electricity and special programs with the common goal of
utilizing cleaner energy and lower rates to the City.
The City reports the following additional fund types:
Private-Purpose Trust Fund – The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the City as
trustee for the Successor Agency.
Basis of Accounting
The Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows
take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly
receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and
donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the
taxes are levied. Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions take place.
Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligible
requirements have been satisfied.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Governmental Funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and
available. Property and sales taxes, interest, certain state and federal grants and charges for services are
accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both
measurable and available. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a Proprietary Fund’s principal ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating.
Financial Statement Amounts
Cash and Investments – Cash and investments represent the City's cash bank accounts including but not
limited to certificates of deposit, money market funds and cash management pools for reporting purposes
in the Statement of Cash Flows.
The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except for assets held
by fiscal agents. Interest earnings as a result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based
on month end cash balances in each fund.
Investments of the pool include only those investments authorized by the California Government Code
such as, United States Treasury securities, agencies guaranteed by the United States Government,
registered state warrants, and other investments. Investments primarily consist of deposits in the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund and certificates of deposit. Investments are recorded at
amortized cost or fair value. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices.
Accounts Receivable – Billed but unpaid services provided to individuals or non-governmental entities are
recorded as accounts receivable. The Proprietary Funds include a year end accrual for services through
June 30, 2021, which have not yet been billed. Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectibles.
Monterey County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of property taxes for all
taxing jurisdictions. Property taxes are levied in equal installments on November 1 and February 1. They
become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is March 1 of each year.
Property taxes are accounted for in the General Fund. Property tax revenues are recognized when they
become measurable and available to finance current liabilities. The City considers property taxes as
available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Property tax on the unsecured roll are due on
the March 1 lien date and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. However, unsecured property taxes
are not susceptible to year end accrual.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
The City is permitted by Article XIIIA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13) to
levy a maximum tax of $1.00 per $100 of full cash value.
Interfund Receivables/Payables – Items classified as interfund receivable/payable represent short-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This classification also includes the current portion of an
advance to or from another fund.
Advances To/From Other Funds – This classification represents non-current portions of any long-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This amount will be equally offset by a reserve of fund
balance which indicates that it does not represent available financial resources and therefore, is not
available for appropriation. The current portion of any interfund long-term loan (advance) is included as
an interfund receivable/payable.
Restricted Assets – Certain proceeds of the King City Public Financing Authority’s Certificates of
Participation, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on
the Statement of Net Position because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is
limited by debt covenants.
Capital Assets – Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the General, Special Revenue, and Capital
Projects Funds and as assets in the Government-Wide Financial Statements to the extent the City’s
capitalization threshold are met.
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful
life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values,
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the results of operations.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:
Years
Infrastructure
Structures and Improvements
Equipment

20 - 50
10 - 50
5 - 30

Compensated Absences – Vacation time may be accumulated up to two years entitlement plus the current
years’ leave allowance. Cash compensation for accrued vacations is generally not payable until the
employee terminates employment with the City. Cash compensation for unused sick leave is payable to an
employee only upon termination of employment with the City. At that time, the employee is compensated
at the rate of 50% of their daily rate.
All accumulated vacation leave and applicable sick leave is accrued when incurred in the governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental
funds only if they have matured; for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements. Leave
benefits are generally liquidated by the general fund.
Long-Term Obligations – In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, and Proprietary Fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or Proprietary Fund Type Statement of Net
Position. Debt principal payments of both government and business-type activities are reported as
decreases in the balance of the liability on the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments of Governmental Funds are recognized
as expenditures when paid. Governmental Fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
Pension – For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s
California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) plan and additions to/deduction from the
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities – GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of
account groups, but provides for these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into the
Governmental Activities column in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Net Position/Fund Balance – The government-wide and business-type activities fund financial statements
utilize a net position presentation. Net position are categorized as net investment in capital assets,
restricted and unrestricted.


Net Investment in Capital Assets - This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure,
into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the
balance in this category.



Restricted Net Position - This category presents external restrictions on net position imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.



Unrestricted Net Position - This category represents net position of the City, not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

Fund Balance – In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is made up of the following
components:


Nonspendable fund balance typically includes inventories, prepaid items, and other items that must
be maintained intact pursuant to legal or contractual requirements, such as endowments.



Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
through enabling legislations.



Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. The City Council has the authority to
establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment.



Assigned fund balance are amounts designated by the City Council for specific purposes and do
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.



Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification that includes all spendable amounts in the
General Fund not contained in other classifications.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned) fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted first. When
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are
available, the City’s policy is to apply committed fund balance first, then assigned fund balance, and
finally unassigned fund balance.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Note 2 – Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability
California law authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, agencies and
instrumentalities, certificates of deposit of time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations which
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
In accordance with applicable sections of the California Government Code and the King City Municipal
Code, the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets
are adopted for the General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds.
Budget plans are adopted for Proprietary Funds. A proposed budget is presented to the City Council
during June of each year for review. The Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or
change appropriations within the revenues and reserves estimated as available. Expenditures may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. Supplementary appropriations which alter the
total expenditures of any fund, or expenditures in excess of total budgeted fund appropriations, must be
approved by the City Council. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end to the extent they have not
been expended or encumbered.
Note 3 – Cash and Investments
The City pools all of its cash and investments except those funds required to be held by outside fiscal
agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash is allocated to
the various funds on average cash balances. Interest income from cash investments held with fiscal
agents is credited directly to the related funds.

21

CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued)
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and Investments
Fiduciary Funds:
Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments with fiscal agent
Total Cash and Investments

$ 13,520,676
1,034,722
4,569,326
$ 19,124,724

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2021 consist of the following:
Cash on hand
Deposits with Financial Institutions
Local Agency Investment Fund
Held by Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Mutual Funds
US Government Issues
Total Cash and Investments

$

905
12,132,564
2,421,929

319,840
4,249,486
$ 19,124,724

Fair Value Measurements
The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
as follows:
Level 1:

Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the measurement date.

Level 2:

Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs – other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 – that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued)
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.
LAIF is valued based on the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire
LAIF portfolio (Level 2 input).
The City had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021:

Level 1
Investments by fair value level:
Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasury Obligations
Total Debt Securities

$

Equity Securities:
LAIF
Total Equity Securities
Cash and cash equivalents carried at amortized cost:
Deposits
Money Market Mutual Funds
Total Investments amortized at cost
Total Cash and Investments

Level 2

-

$ 4,249,486
4,249,486

-

2,421,929
2,421,929

June 30, 2021
Balance

Level 3

$

-

-

$

4,249,486
4,249,486

2,421,929
2,421,929

12,133,469
319,840
12,453,309
$ 19,124,724

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt
agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
City’s investment policy.
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued)

Authorized Investment Type

U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Banker's Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Money Market Mutual Funds
Investment Contracts
Certificates of Deposits
Repurchase Agreements
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Municipal Bonds

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Credit
Quality

Maximum
Percentage
Allowed

None
None
1 year
None
None
None
1 year
30 days
N/A
None

None
AAA
None
A-1
A
None
A-1
None
None
None

None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None
None

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements
Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by the bond
trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Authorized Investment Type
Local Agency Bonds

U.S. Treasury Obligations
U.S. Agency Securities
Banker's Acceptances
Commercial Paper
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Repurchase Agreements
Reverse Repurchase Agreements
Medium-Term Notes
Mutual Funds
Money Market Mutual Funds
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities

Maximum
Maturity

Minimum
Percentage
of Portfolio

Maximum
Percentage
of Portfolio

1 year
1 year
1 year
180 days
270 days
1 year
90 days
92 days
5 years
N/A
N/A
5 years

None
A
None
None
None
None
None
None
A
A
A
AA

None
None
None
40%
25%
30%
None
20% of base value
30%
20%
20%
20%
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CITY OF KING CITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued)
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2021 the City had the following investments:

Investment Type
LAIF
US Government Issues
Total Investments
Cash in bank and on hand
Total Cash and Investments

12 Months
13 to 24
or less
Months
$ 2,421,929 $
4,249,486
$ 6,671,415 $

25 to 84
Months
$
$

- $
-

Total
2,421,929
4,249,486
6,671,415

12,453,309
$ 19,124,724

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end
for each investment type.
Not rated:
LAIF
US Government Issues
Cash in bank and on hand
Total Cash and Investments

$

2,421,929
4,249,486
12,453,309
$ 19,124,724

Concentration of Credit Risk
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one
issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5%
or more of total City investments.
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the City’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial
credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived
by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at
least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of
the secured public deposits.
The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy
do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for
investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments
in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment
in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as LAIF).
GASB Statement No. 40 requires that the following disclosures be made with respect to custodial credit
risks relating to deposits and investments: The City did not have any deposits with financial institutions in
excess of federal depository insurance limits and held in uncollateralized accounts. As of June 30, 2021,
the City investments in the following investment types were held by the broker-dealer that was used by the
City to buy the securities:
Investment Type
US Government Issues

Reported Amount
$
4,249,486

Investment in State Investment Pool
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value
of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based
upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation
to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.
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Note 4 – Advances To and From, Interfund Receivables and Payables, and Transfers
Advances To and From
Advances to and from consist of long-term loans between funds. On February 9, 2016, the Sewer Fund
loaned the General Fund $5,000,000 at .275% to be repaid back in 7 years. The advances were paid back
during the fiscal year.
Interfund Receivables and Payables
Interfund receivables and payables consist of short-term loans resulting from regular transactions. These
loans are expected to be repaid as soon as the borrowing fund has cash, and carry an interest rate equal to the
rate earned on pooled cash.
Individual fund interfund receivables and payables balances as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

General Fund
Riverview Gardens Landscape
CDBG Pro Youth
SB 1 Multimodal Grant
SB 2 Planning Land Use Element Grant
Transportation
Development Impact Fees Fund
Prop 68 Grant
Airport Operations

Due From
$
709,282
$
709,282

Due To
$

$

2,087
100,400
266,887
56,523
71,853
13,395
175,296
22,841
709,282

The interfund payable balance due to the General Fund, Riverview Gardens Landscape, CDBG Pro Youth,
SB 1 Multimodal Grant, SB 2 Planning Land Use Element Grant, Transportation, Development Impact Fees
Fund, Prop 68 Grant, and Airport Operations is a result of deficits in certain funds and temporary cash flow
assistance in others. The balances due will be repaid as funds are available.
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Note 4 – Advances To and From, Interfund Receivables and Payables, and Transfers (Continued)
Transfers
In general, the City uses interfund transfers to (1) move revenues from the funds that collect them to the
funds’ that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General
Fund to help finance various programs and capital projects accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorization, and (3) move cash to debt service funds from the funds responsible for payment as
debt service payments become due. In general, the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements.
Transfers In
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund
Enterprise Funds:
Sewer Fund
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Airport Operations Fund
Gas Tax Fund
CDBG Grant Fund
CDBG Grants Fund
UUT-Public Safety Fund

$

$

Transfers Out

428,772

$

-

-

(300,000)

51,285
172,134
9,920
4,235
666,346

(366,346)
(666,346)

$
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Note 5 – Capital Assets
Capital asset activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 were as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2020

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

$

Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

- $
530,533
530,533

- $
-

653,060
853,626
1,506,686

34,900
34,900

-

9,945,608
15,463,395
4,020,613
29,429,616

(7,041,772)
(7,473,925)
(3,000,779)
(17,516,476)

(236,549)
(578,423)
(174,376)
(989,348)

-

(7,278,321)
(8,052,348)
(3,175,155)
(18,505,824)

11,878,240

(954,448)

-

10,923,792

$

12,854,393 $

(423,915) $

- $

12,430,478

$

764,093 $
764,093

- $
-

764,093
764,093

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Balance
June 30, 2021

Retirements

9,945,608
15,463,395
3,985,713
29,394,716

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

653,060 $
323,093
976,153

Additions

-

$

Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and improvements
Plant and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

14,027,574
1,455,625
15,483,199

76,342
76,342

-

14,027,574
1,531,967
15,559,541

Less: accumulated depreciation

(6,656,055)

(322,797)

-

(6,978,852)

8,827,144

(246,455)

-

8,580,689

9,591,237 $

(246,455) $

- $

9,344,782

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

$
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Note 5 – Capital Assets (Continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the Statement of Activities:

Governmental Functions:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Culture and Recreation

$

Business-Type Functions:
Sewer

$

62,652
217,742
535,845
173,109
989,348

$

322,797

Note 6 – Notes Receivables
Notes receivable and deferred loans consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:
King City Pacific Associates, L.P. - The HOME Investment Partnership Grant program approved
$3,000,000 of grant funds to be made available for local development of an affordable housing project.
The City entered into an agreement with King City Pacific Associates, L.P. to loan such funds for the
construction of the San Antonio Apartments. Funds were provided in the form of a deferred payment loan.
If not paid sooner, the unpaid principal balance of this note, plus any unpaid interest thereon shall be due
and payable in full fifty-five years from the date of the note. The note bears 3% interest and the face
amount of the note at June 30, 2021 was $3,000,000. Accrued interest receivable at June 30, 2021 was
$750,000.
Note 7 – Long-Term Debt
The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful
lives equal to or greater than the related debt. The City’s debt transactions are summarized below and
discussed in detail thereafter:
Balance
July 1, 2020
Governmental Activities Long Term Debt
Direct Borrowings:
2019 Street Sweeper Capital Lease
Telephone Capital Lease

Retirements

Balance
June 30, 2021

Current
Portion

$

185,454
12,622
884,765

$

-

$

(30,182) $
(12,622)
(58,309)

155,272
826,456

$

31,666
98,848

$

1,082,841

$

-

$

(101,113) $

981,728

$

130,514

Solar Energy Capital Lease
Total Governmental Activities Long-term Debt

Additions
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Note 7 – Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Long-term debt payable at June 30, 2021 was comprised of the following individual issues:
Balance
July 1, 2020
Business-Type Activities Long Term Debt
Direct Borrowings:
Solar Energy Capital Lease
Pilot Power Note Payable
Direct Placements:
2018 Sewer Bonds
Bond Discount
2021 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds

$

1,324,459
79,294

Additions

$

3,935,477
(187,957)
-

Retirements

-

$

1,237,174
-

(3,935,477)
-

4,012,670

$ (4,102,056) $

5,249,844

$

5,151,273

$

4,200,627

Compensated Absences
Governmental Activities

$

438,172

$

-

$

$
$

6,124,131
107,873

$
$

347,468
5,053

$
$

Business-Type Activities

(87,285) $
(79,294)

187,957
4,012,670

Total Business-Type Activities Debt

Net Pension Liability
Governmental Activities

Balance
June 30, 2021

(92,799) $

-

$
$

Current
Portion

$

95,892
178,330

$

274,222

345,373

6,471,599
112,926

2019 Street Sweeper Capital Lease – On March 156, 2019, the City entered into a lease agreement for a
street sweeper. The lease bears an interest rate of 4.829% and terminates on December 1, 2025.
Telephone Capital Lease – On June 14, 2016, the City entered into 60-month phone equipment lease for
a montly payment of $1,107 at 9.460% interest rate. Annual payments are $13,278 and terminates on July
1, 2021. Lease was paid off during the fiscal year.
Solar Energy Capital Lease – On July 10, 2016, the City started making payments on a solar lease
arrangement. The amount financed was $2,644,187. Annual payments are from $94,649 to $156,907 and
terminates on January 10, 2030. Interest rate is 3.231%.
2018 Enterprise Revenue Bonds – In September 2018, the City issued the Taxable Wastewater
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 for the principal amount of $4,041,590. The issuance was to
refund the outstanding principal balance of the 2009 Refunding Certificates of Participation described
above. The City completed the refunding to reduce debt service payments by $853,632 in aggregate and to
obtain an economic gain (difference between the present value of the old and new debt service payments)
of $250,598. The bonds bear interest ranging from 3.8% to 4.10% and are payable semi-annually
commencing September 2019 through September 2038. Debt service is secured by a pledge of net
revenues of the City’s Sewer Systems. This debt was refinanced with 2021 Refunding.
2021 WasteWater Revenue Refunding Bonds - In May 2021, the City issued the 2021 WasteWater
Revenue Refunding Bonds for the principal amount of $4,012,670. The issuance was to refund the
outstanding principal balance of the 2018 Enterprise Revenue Bonds described above. The reacquistion
price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $77,193. The City refunded the above debts to
reduce its total debt service over 17 years by $99,551 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between
the present values of debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $310,178. The bonds bear interest
2.250% and are payable semi-annually commencing September 2021 through March 2038.
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Note 7 – Long-Term Debt (Continued)
2021 WasteWater Revenue Refunding Bonds (continued)
Debt service is secured by a pledge of net revenues of the City’s WasteWater Systems. The City
covenants that it shall prescribe, revise and collect such charges for the services and facilities of the
wastewater systems which shall produce revenues sufficient in each fiscal year to provide gross revenues
which are sufficient to pay all wastewater operation and maintenance costs and all bond installment
payments and produce net wastewater revenues equal to at least 1.15 times debt service coming due and
payable during such fiscal year. The City is in compliance with those covenants as of June 30, 2021.
Cash basis debt service paid during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 totaled $0. Total wastewater
system net revenues and net revenue available for debt were not calculated due to no debt service payment
at June 30, 2021.
Pilot Power Note Payable – On July 1, 2018, the City borrowed $599,461 from Pilot Power. Monthly
payments are from $26,772 to $26,897 and terminates on October 2020. Interest rate is 6.5 – 7.25%. This
note was paid off duirng the fiscal year.
The annual requirement to amortize the principal and interest on all long-term debt at June 30, 2021 was:
Years ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2039

Business-Type Activities
Government-Wide Activities
Interest
Principal
Interest
Principal
$
130,514 $
33,120 $
274,222 $
105,916
106,558
29,444
292,651
120,195
114,810
25,493
306,515
112,456
123,520
21,250
321,011
104,304
113,297
16,817
336,196
95,721
393,029
33,466
1,734,051
334,852
1,199,060
157,088
786,138
26,794
$
981,728 $
159,590 $
5,249,844 $
1,057,326

Conduit Debt Obligations - To provide financing for health facilities of Southern Monterey
County Memorial Hospital (the “Corporation”), the City has issued $5,265,000 aggregate principal
amount of Health Facilities Revenue Certificates of Participation, 1998 Series A, and $7,735,000
aggregate principal amount of Health Facilities Revenue Certificates of Participation, 1999 Series
B (the “COPS”). These COPS are payable solely from purchase payments received by the City
from the Corporation pursuant to an installment purchase agreement. The COPS do not constitute
a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the City and accordingly have not been reported in the
accompanying financial statements. At June 30, 2021 the outstanding balance on both COPS
Series was $4,603,653. As of June 30, 2021 the Corporation is paying interest only through a
forbearance agreement and on February 4, 2022 the debt was paid off.
Note 8 – Deficit Fund Balances
Fund Balance Deficits - The following is a summary of deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2021:
Governmental Funds
Riverview Gardens Landscape

$

(2,513)

These deficits are are expected to be relieved from future revenues or transfers from other funds.
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Note 9 – Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future period(s) and thus, will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has two items to report
in this category:



The City has $1,447,646 in pension related items that qualify to be reported in deferred
outflows of resources. The pension related deferred outflows of resources are described in Note
10.
The City has $187,957 in unamortized deferred amount of refunding related to the 2021
Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represent an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item to report in this
category:


The City has $265,263 in pension related items that qualify to be reported in deferred inflows of
resources. The pension related deferred inflows of resources are described in Note 10.

The City also has one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that
qualifies for reporting as deferred inflows of resources. Accordingly, that item, deferred loans, is
reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The City reports in the HOME Grant fund,
$3,000,000, deferred loans and accrued interest of $750,000.
Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan)
Plan Description - The City contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS),
an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public
entities within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state
statute and city ordinance. Copies of PERS' annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive
Office - 400 P Street - Sacramento, CA 95814.
Funding Policy – The City pays 7.732% - 18.152% of annual covered salary for active plan members
in the City’s defined pension plan. The City is required to contribute the actuarially determined
remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The contribution requirements of plan
members are established by State statute and the employer contribution is established and may be amended
by PERS.
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Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021, are summarized as follows:

Hire Date
Benefit Formula

Benefit Vesting Schedule
Benefit Payments
Retirement Age
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible Compensation
Required Employee Contribution Rates
Required Employer Contribution Rates

Hire Date
Benefit Formula

Benefit Vesting Schedule
Benefit Payments
Retirement Age
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible Compensation
Required Employee Contribution Rates
Required Employer Contribution Rates

Miscellaneous
Prior to
January 1, 2013
2.0% at 55;
maximum 2%
COLA
5 years service
monthly for life
55
2.00%
7.00%
10.484%

Safety
Prior to
January 1, 2013
2.0% at 50;
maximum 2%
COLA
5 years service
monthly for life
50
2.00%
9.00%
18.152%

PEPRA
Miscellaneous
On or after
January 1, 2013
2.0% at 62;
maximum 2%
COLA
5 years service
monthly for life
62
2.00%
6.25%
7.732%

PEPRA Safety
On or after
January 1, 2013
2.7% at 57;
maximum 2%
COLA
5 years service
monthly for life
57
2.00%
11.50%
13.044%

Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for both Plans
are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute
the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.
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Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the contributions recognized as part of the pension expense is as
follows:
Contributions – employer
Contributions – employee

$ 706,613
$ 236,111

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions
As of June 30, 2021, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of each Plan as follows:

Miscellaneous
Safety

Proportionate Share of
Net Pension Liability
$3,528,942
$3,055,582

The City’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total
pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 30, 2020 using standard update procedures. The
City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers,
actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of
June 30, 2020 and 2021 was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2020
Proportion - June 30, 2021
Change

Miscellaneous
0.08418%
0.08366%
-0.00052%

Safety
0.04583%
0.04586%
0.00003%
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Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $1,157,648. At June 30, 2021,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from
the following sources:

Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date
Differences in expected and actual experience
Change in employer's proportion
Changes of assumptions
Differences between employer's contributions and
proporationate share of contributions
Differences between projected and actual
investment earnings

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$
706,613

Deferred Inflows of
Resources
$
-

418,802
150,989
-

(48,679)
(35,348)

-

(181,236)

171,242
1,447,646

(265,263)

$

Total

$

The $706,613 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:
Year Ended
June 30
2022
2023
2024
2025
Total

$

$

65,847
180,114
146,256
83,553
475,770
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Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2020
measurement period was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, with update
procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2020. The collective total pension
liability was based on the following assumptions:

Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Salary Increases
Mortality Rate Table

June 30, 2019
June 30, 2020
Entry-Age Normal Cost Method in
accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 68

7.15%
2.50%
2.50%
Varies by Entry Age and Service
Derived using CalPERS' Membership
Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increa Contract COLA up to 2.5% until
Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power
applies

1

1

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this table,
please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to
2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation was based on the results of an
December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015),
including updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study can be obtained
at CalPERS’ website.
Change of assumptions – None.
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Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)
Discount rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.15%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which bestestimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected rate of returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and longterm market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns
of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and
long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.
The long-term expected real rates of return by asset class can be found in CalPERS’ Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
The table below reflects long-term expected real rates of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. The geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
New Strategic
Real Return
Real Return
2
3
Allocation
Years 1-10
Years 11+
Global Equity
50%
4.80%
5.98%
Fixed Income
28%
1.00%
2.62%
Inflation Assets
0%
0.77%
1.81%
Private Equity
8%
6.30%
7.23%
Real Estate
13%
3.75%
4.93%
Infrastructure and Forestland
0%
0.00%
0.00%
Liquidity
1%
0.00%
-0.92%
Total
100%
1
In the System’s CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in
Short-term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt
Securities
2
An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period
3
An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period
Asset Class

1
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Note 10 – City Employees’ Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan) (Continued)
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculating using the discount rate of each Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(6.15%) or 1-percentage point higher (8.15%) than the current rate:

Miscellaneous
Safety

1% Decrease
(6.15%)
$
5,345,821
$
4,685,184

Current Discount
Rate
(7.15%)
$
3,528,942
$
3,055,583

1% Increase
(8.15%)
$
2,027,711
$
1,718,340

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.
Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2021, the City has no outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for
the year ended June 30, 2021.
Note 11 – Risk Management
The City provides for workers' compensation and liability through a self-funded joint powers agency,
Monterey Bay Area Self Insurance Authorities. Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) accounts are not separately
maintained for each participant.
Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement
The City is a member of the Monterey Bay Area Self Insurance Authority (MBASIA). MBASIA is
composed of 10 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement pursuant to
California Government Code 6500 et seq. The purpose of MBASIA is to arrange and administer programs
for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for
group-purchased insurance for property and other coverage.
General Liability: The City has a deductible of $10,000 for each liability claim. Claims above $10,000 up
to $1,000,000 are paid by MBASIA. Claims above $1,000,000 up to $29,000,000 are covered by insurance
purchased by MBASIA.
Workers’ Compensation: The City does not retain deductible for workers’ compensation claims. Annual
premiums for coverage up to statutory levels are paid to MBASIA based on a Board approved Budget
methodology. A third party claims administrator is contracted by MBASIA to manage claims activity.
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Note 11 – Risk Management (Continued)
Adequacy of Protection
During the past three fiscal (claims) years none of the above programs of protection have had settlements
or judgments that exceeded insured coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insured liability
coverage from coverage in the prior year. Audited financial statements for MBASIA can be obtained from
their management at 100 Pine Street, 11th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94111.
Note 12 – Subsequent Events
The City evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through March 15, 2022, the date
which these financial statements were available to be issued. Management concluded that no material
subsequent events have occurred since June 30, 2021 that required recognition or disclosure in such
financial statements.
Note 13 – Contingencies
Federal and State Government Programs - The City participates in several federal and state grant
programs. These programs have been audited, as needed, in accordance with the provisions of the federal
Single Audit Act of 1984 and applicable state requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a
result of these audits. However, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and
the amount, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be
determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
Landfill Postclosure Costs – Since the closure of the City’s landfill in previous fiscal years, the City has
been incurring postclosure care costs. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the
City was required to estimate and recognize and accrued a liability for both closure and postclosure costs
related to the landfill. Because the City accounts for the postclosure costs in a governmental fund, this
liability of total estimated costs should be reported in the government-wide statement of net position, and
be adjusted each year as necessary. However, the City has not estimated and recorded this liability as
required. In addition, certain note disclosures relating to the landfill postclosure costs have not been
included in these financial statements.
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CITY OF KING CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Final
Original

Revenue
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Interest and rents
Other
Total revenue

$

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Total expenditures
Revenue over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources
Sale of property
Transfers in (out), net
Total other financing sources/(uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

$

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive/
(Negative)

5,426,900 $
45,000
14,000
1,129,330
33,000
3,000
6,651,230

6,035,385 $
310,487
14,000
890,789
33,000
3,000
7,286,661

7,278,253 $
728,064
15,818
1,032,655
31,344
23,019
213,585
9,322,738

1,242,868
417,577
1,818
141,866
(1,656)
20,019
213,585
2,036,077

937,295
4,069,555
774,004
334,571
963,138

950,167
4,167,693
807,483
230,304
1,349,680

988,430
4,390,814
804,415
260,999
1,775,806

(38,263)
(223,121)
3,068
(30,695)
(426,126)

66,727
26,039
7,171,329

66,727
26,039
7,598,093

79,350
29,542
8,329,356

(12,623)
(3,503)
(731,263)

(520,099)

(311,432)

993,382

1,304,814

(841,634)
(841,634)

(841,634)
(841,634)

787,108
428,772
1,215,880

787,108
1,270,406
2,057,514

(1,153,066)

2,209,262

(1,361,733) $

$

$

2,575,220

(444,147)
1,765,115
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CITY OF KING CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Final
Original

Revenue
Charges for services
Licenses, permits and impact fees
Interest and rent
Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Revenue over/(under)
expenditures
Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

$

30,000
571,000
601,000

$

650,000
650,000
$

(49,000)

$

30,000
660,500
690,500

Actual
Amounts

$

23,272
284,053
1,944
309,269

4,000
650,000
654,000

81,309
21,848
158,033
261,190

36,500

48,079

$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive/
(Negative)

$

(6,728)
(376,447)
1,944
(381,231)

(81,309)
4,000
(21,848)
491,967
470,119
$

88,888

1,607,586
1,655,665
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CITY OF KING CITY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MEASURE X FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Budgeted Amounts
Final
Original

Revenue
Taxes
Interest and rent

$

Total revenue
Expenditures
Current
Public works
Total expenditures
Revenue over (under) expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

$

404,000
-

$

404,000
-

Actual
Amounts
$

460,858
242

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive/
(Negative)
$

56,858
242

404,000

404,000

461,100

57,100

326,351
326,351

326,351
326,351

113,539
113,539

212,812
212,812

77,649

77,649

347,561

269,912

77,649 $

77,649

347,561

$

$

269,912

121,547
469,108
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CITY OF KING CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 YEARS*
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Proportion of the net
pension liability
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

0.09668%
0.08862%
0.08541%
0.08489%
0.08484%
0.08418%
0.08366%

Proportion of the net
pension liability
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

0.04336%
0.04014%
0.04024%
0.04119%
0.04242%
0.04381%
0.04586%

Proportionate share
of the net pension
liability
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,389,457
2,431,259
2,967,126
3,346,536
3,197,346
3,371,043
3,528,942

Proportionate share
of the net pension
liability
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,626,559
1,653,870
2,084,204
2,461,421
2,488,981
2,860,960
3,055,582

Miscellaneous
Proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a
percentage of coveredCovered - employee
employee payroll
payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

834,582
936,886
978,018
1,019,404
763,963
845,215
1,077,863

286.31%
259.50%
303.38%
328.28%
418.52%
398.84%
327.40%

Plan's fiduciary net
position
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Safety
Proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a
Covered - employee
percentage of coveredpayroll
employee payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,087,897
939,684
829,185
1,262,109
1,298,268
1,359,578
1,346,512

149.51%
176.00%
251.36%
195.02%
191.72%
210.43%
226.93%

7,090,204
8,223,238
7,817,932
8,822,837
9,315,620
9,771,801
10,124,046

Plan's fiduciary net
position
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

6,567,188
6,832,315
6,292,887
7,510,467
8,149,726
8,489,785
8,944,101

Plan's fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the Total
Pension Liability
77.58%
77.18%
72.49%
72.50%
74.45%
74.35%
74.15%

Plan's fiduciary net position
as a percentage of the Total
Pension Liability
80.15%
80.51%
75.12%
75.32%
76.60%
74.79%
74.54%

* Fiscal year 2014-15 was the first year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown.
Changes of Assumptions: None
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CITY OF KING CITY
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 YEARS*
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Miscellaneous
Contractually required
Contributions in
contribution
relation to the
(actuarially
actuarially determined
Contributions
determined)
contributions
deficiency (excess)
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

145,093
187,302
257,596
257,638
306,385
345,470
402,008

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(145,093)
(187,302)
(257,596)
(257,638)
(306,385)
(345,470)
(402,008)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-

Covered-employee payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

834,582
936,886
978,018
1,019,404
763,963
845,215
1,077,863

Contributions as a
percentage of coveredemployee payroll
17.39%
19.99%
26.34%
25.27%
40.10%
40.87%
37.30%

Safety
Contractually required
Contributions in
contribution
relation to the
(actuarially
actuarially determined
Contributions
determined)
contributions
deficiency (excess)
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

279,368
213,094
182,185
219,036
285,131
306,024
384,434

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(279,368)
(213,094)
(182,185)
(219,036)
(285,131)
(306,024)
(384,434)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

-

Covered-employee payroll
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,087,897
939,684
829,185
1,262,109
1,298,268
1,359,578
1,346,512

Contributions as a
percentage of coveredemployee payroll
25.68%
22.68%
21.97%
17.35%
21.96%
22.51%
28.55%

* Fiscal year 2014-15 was the first year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.
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SUPPLEMENTAL ONLY INFORMATION

CITY OF KING CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
SLESF/COPS
Grant
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expense
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Restricted
Circulation improvements
Capital improvement projects
Public safety
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance

$

$

$

218,348 $
16,667
31
235,046 $

-

$

235,046
235,046
$

Riverview
Gardens
Landscape

Asset
Seizure

235,046

11,267
2
11,269

$

-

$

$

11,269
11,269
$

11,269

Prop
1B
-

$

426
2,087
2,513

$

$

(2,513)
(2,513)
$

-

SB1 Road
Maintenance

12,092
2
12,094

$

-

$

$

12,094
12,094
$

12,094

Traffic
Safety

243,596
49,988
34
293,618

$

262,764
262,764

$

$

30,854
30,854
$

293,618

2,861
2,861

-

2,861
2,861
$

2,861
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CITY OF KING CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
SB2
Planning
Land Use
Element Grant

SB1
Multimodal Grant
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expense
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Restricted
Circulation improvements
Capital improvement projects
Public safety
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance

$

$

$

275,306
275,306

8,419
266,887
275,306

$

$

$

$

275,306

CDBG
Grant

58,151
58,151

$

1,628
56,523
58,151

$

$

$

58,151

64,555 $
59,081
17
123,653 $

2,595 $
2,595

121,058
121,058
$

Gas
Tax

Transportation

123,653

(7,984) $
79,837
71,853 $

33,056
5
33,061

71,853
71,853

24,480
24,480

$

$

71,853

8,581
8,581
$

33,061
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CITY OF KING CITY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
CDBG
Grants
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expense
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Restricted
Circulation improvements
Capital improvement projects
Public safety
Unassigned
Total fund balance
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance

$

$

$

CDBG
Pro Youth
- $
- $

- $
100,650
100,650 $

- $
-

250
100,400
100,650

$

Airport
Operations

-

$

$

100,650

Prop 68
Grant

89,532
16,863
75
2
106,472

$

29,906
22,841
52,747

$

$

53,725
53,725
$

106,472

UUT-Public
Safety

175,296
175,296

$

175,296
175,296

$

$

$

Total
Non-major
Governmental
Funds

175,296

1,500
24,995
52
26,547

$

-

$

$

26,547
26,547
$

26,547

667,323
18,363
840,046
145
1,525,877

330,468
695,887
1,026,355

42,296
133,152
326,587
(2,513)
499,522
$

1,525,877
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CITY OF KING CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
SLESF/COPS
Grant
Revenue
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest and rent
Total revenue

$

Expenditures
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

Riverview
Gardens
Landscape

Asset
Seizure

156,728
242
156,970

$

- $
13
13

Prop
1B

17,922
17,922

$

SB1
Road Maintenace
12,080
14
12,094

$

Traffic
Safety

- $
274,313
116
274,429

3
3

141,245
-

-

11,794
-

-

262,764
-

-

141,245

-

11,794

-

262,764

-

Revenue over (under) expenditures

15,725

13

6,128

12,094

11,665

3

Other financing sources/(uses)
Transfers in/(out), net
Total other financing sources (uses)

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,725

13

6,128

12,094

11,665

3

Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

219,321
$

235,046

11,256
$

11,269

(8,641)
$

(2,513) $

12,094

19,189
$

30,854

2,858
$

2,861
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CITY OF KING CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
SB2
Planning
Land Use
Element Grant

SB1
Multimodal Grant
Revenue
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest and rent
Total revenue

$

315,272
76,055
391,327

14,561

518,503

-

59,291
-

-

-

280,905

40,339

59,291

14,561

21,763
10,496
550,762

Revenue over (under) expenditures

24,880

17,812

65,276

(159,435)

Other financing sources/(uses)
Transfers in/(out), net
Total other financing sources (uses)

-

-

9,920
9,920

-

172,134
172,134

24,880

17,812

9,847

65,276

12,699

(65,276)

(4,118)

Change in Fund Balance

$

Gas
Tax

Transportation
- $
79,837
79,837

Expenditures
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

305,785
305,785

CDBG
Grant

- $
58,151
58,151

59,081
137
59,218

23,505
257,400

40,339

$

(73)

Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

(24,880)
$

-

(17,812)
$

- $

111,211
121,058

$

- $

8,581
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CITY OF KING CITY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Special Revenue Funds
CDBG
Grants
Revenue
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenue
Interest and rent
Total revenue

$

Expenditures
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures

CDBG
Youth
- $
-

Airport
Operations

- $
190,614
1
190,615

Prop 68
Grant

Total
Non-major
Governmental
Funds

UUT-Public
Safety

- $
136,413
101,497
6,350
244,260

175,296
175,296

$

341,970 $
232
342,202

675,164
1,524,353
101,497
6,350
758
2,308,122

-

99,656
-

222,503
-

25,296
150,000

-

141,245
1,093,969
25,296
158,947
407,400

-

99,656

222,503

175,296

-

21,763
10,496
1,859,116

Revenue over (under) expenditures

-

90,959

21,757

-

342,202

449,006

Other financing sources/(uses)
Transfers in/(out), net
Total other financing sources (uses)

4,235
4,235

-

51,285
51,285

-

(366,346)
(366,346)

(128,772)
(128,772)

Change in Fund Balance

4,235

90,959

73,042

-

(24,144)

320,234

(4,235)

(90,959)

(19,317)

-

50,691

179,288

Fund Balance
Beginning of year
End of year

$

-

$

-

$

53,725

$

-

$

26,547

$

499,522
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BRYANT L. JOLLEY
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Bryant L. Jolley C.P.A.
Ryan P. Jolley C.P.A.
Darryl L. Smith C.P.A.
Luis A. Perez C.P.A.
Lan T. Kimoto

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King City, California
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the businesstype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King City,
California, (the “City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 15, 2022.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the the deficiency described
in item 2012-02 in the accompany schedule of findings to be a material weakness.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

March 15, 2022
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To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of King, California
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of King for the year
ended June 30, 2021. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and, if applicable, Government Auditing
Standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 1, 2020. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by City of King are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2021. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year that were
both significant and unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform
you, or transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance and consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.
We noted no transactions entered into by City of King during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the City’s financial statements were:
Management has determined the economic useful lives of fixed assets based on past history of
similar types of assets, future plans as to their use, and other factors that impact their economic
value to the City. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management in
computing depreciation expense and believe that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.
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Management’s estimate of the net pension liability and related deferrals is based on actuarial
valuations which include significant assumptions regarding discount rate, inflation, payroll
growth, projected salary increases and investment rate of return. We evaluated the key factors
and assumptions used to develop the liability and related deferrals in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
the course of our audit.
Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated March 15, 2022.
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to City of King’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.
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Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as City of King’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.
Other Matters
We applied certain limited procedures to the Budgetary Comparison Schedules, Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability, and Schedule of Contributions which are required supplementary
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
We were engaged to report on supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information,
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
Restriction on Use
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management
of City of King and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Very truly yours,

March 15, 2022
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Item No. 11 (B)
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

DATE:

APRIL 12, 2022

TO:

HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM:

STEVEN ADAMS, CITY MANAGER

RE:

CONSIDERATION OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
TO
STRENGTHEN
RELATIONS
BETWEEN
MILITARY
INSTALLATIONS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended the City Council: 1) approve and authorize the Mayor to
execute a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of King, City of Paso
Robles, Fort Hunter Liggett, Camp Roberts, and Camp San Luis Obispo to
strengthen relations between military installations and local governments; and 2)
appoint a Policy Committee member and alternate.
BACKGROUND:
The City has significant mutual interests with local military bases, particularly Fort
Hunter Liggett (FHL). FHL provides important jobs and residents who work on
the base provide value to the community. They have been a particularly
important partner in the City’s efforts to achieve a new Amtrak stop in King City.
As a result, City staff and officials have worked hard the past several years to
foster a positive relationship.
Most recently, the Mayor has been participating in planning group discussions
regarding formalizing the partnership and expanding it to include other partner
military installations and the City of Paso Robles. The group has proposed to
establish a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). At a recent meeting, the
Mayor requested, and Council concurred, to direct staff to present the MOU to
the Council for consideration.
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DISCUSSION:
The name of the partnership has not yet been selected and will be entered into
the MOU soon. The partnership will be led by a Policy Committee, which will
include one representative from each partner agency and will meet at least
quarterly. Therefore, the City Council will also need to appoint the member and
an alternate from the City Council. In addition, technical staff may meet as
needed.
The functions of the partnership will include the following:
•

Raise the awareness and importance of military installation and local
government partnerships supporting local, state, federal and national
defense goals;

•

Educate communities, regions, members of the military and elected
officials on the positive economic impacts and quality of life benefits to the
region;

•

Cooperate in developing and distributing information about military
installation and local government needs;

•

Identify funding that PARTNERS may pursue or obtain to improve military
installations and/or local governments;

•

Coordinate efforts on economic and beneficial opportunities that improve
quality of life, military readiness and effectiveness and improve relations
between civilians and military personal;

•

Seek support from other public and private partners to raise awareness
about the importance of military installation and local government
partnerships to encourage investments in military installation and/or local
government improvements; and

•

Highlight the importance of the military installation and local government
partnerships with local elected officials, state legislative and congressional
representatives.

COST ANALYSIS:
There are no direct costs associated with participating in the MOU.
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Name Here (NH)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
AMONG
FORT HUNTER LIGGETT
CAMP ROBERTS
CAMP SLO
CITY OF PASO ROBLES
CITY OF KING
TO FORM A PARTNERSHIP KNOWN AS THE Name Here (NH) TO STRENGTHEN
RELATIONS BETWEEN MILITARY INSTALLATIONS AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS.
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between Fort Hunter
Liggett (FHL), Camp Roberts (CR), Camp SLO (CSLO), the City of Paso Robles, and the
City of King, referred to herein as “PARTNER” or collectively, as “PARTNERS”.
RECITALS
WHEREAS, each of the PARTNERS is a military installation or a local government; and
WHEREAS, military installations and local governments function as an essential
partnership to ensure military readiness and maximize area investments, including but
not limited to, housing, grants, contracts and service agreements; and
WHEREAS, the PARTNERS wish to raise awareness and highlight the value of the
military installations and local governments collaborative efforts and benefits to the
region; and
WHEREAS, PARTNERS work to integrate military installations and local governments
goals to improve readiness, resiliency, and quality of life within their jurisdictions; and
WHEREAS, PARTNERS work to identify projects and programs of mutual benefit and
opportunities for funding from local, state, federal and any or all available sources.
WHEREAS, ASSOCIATED PARTNERS and EX-OFFICIO PARTNERS are welcome to
attend and fully participate as non-voting members; and,
NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTNERS hereby set forth their mutual understanding and
actions required for the agreed upon scope of work:

I.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
A. Under this MOU, the PARTNERS agree to work together to:
(1)

Raise the awareness and importance of military installation and local
government partnerships supporting local, state, federal and national
defense goals; and

(2)

Educate communities, regions, members of the military and elected
officials on the positive economic impacts and quality of life benefits to
the region; and

(3)

Cooperate in developing and distributing information about military
installation and local government needs; and

(4)

Identify funding that PARTNERS may pursue or obtain to improve
military installations and/or local governments; and

(5)

Coordinate efforts on economic and beneficial opportunities that
improve quality of life, military readiness and effectiveness and
improve relations between civilians and military personal; and

(6)

Seek support from other public and private partners to raise awareness
about the importance of military installation and local government
partnerships to encourage investments in military installation and/or
local government improvements; and

(7)

Highlight the importance of the military installation and local
government partnerships with local elected officials, state legislative
and congressional representatives; and

B. The name for the working body under this mutual understanding will be
known as the “Name Here” or “NH”.
C. The NH shall initially consist of one standing committee known as the Policy
Committee. Other committees and subcommittees may be created as the
NH deems appropriate. The Policy Committee shall select a PARTNER to
serve a three-year term as the “Facilitating Agency” to facilitate the work of
the NH, as set forth below.

II.

FACILITATING AGENCY
A. The Facilitating Agency, as selected by the Policy Committee, shall facilitate
meetings, prepare agendas, prepare notices, set the calendar, and conduct
subcommittee meetings in accordance with the Ralph. M. Brown Act
(California Government Code Section 54950, et seq.) .

III.

AGENCY REPRESENTATION, LEADERSHIP, ASSOCIATED PARTNERS and
EX-OFFICIO PARTNERS
A. Each PARTNER may appoint one (1) Policy Committee member and an
alternate for each, if they chose. The committee members may be selected
from the PARTNER’s, for military installations, a member from their
respective military installation and for local governments, a sitting or former
Mayor or council member. Chair & Vice Chair of the Policy Committee shall
be elected at the first meeting of each calendar year.
B. The Facilitating Agency may convene periodic technical meetings of member
agency staff
C. Representatives from other interested organizations may join as
ASSOCIATED PARTNERS and an alternate for each, if they chose.
D. Elected officials or their designee from the County Board of Supervisors,
State Assembly, State Senate, Member of Congress (House and Senate) and
Governor that represent the jurisdictional boundaries of the PARTNERS shall
have a non-voting seat as EX-OFFICIO PARTNERS.

IV.

MEETINGS & SCHEDULE
A. The technical staff of the PARTNERS may conduct meetings monthly, and
the Policy Committee will meet at least quarterly.
B. The meeting schedule will be maintained by the Facilitating Agency by setting
meetings one year in advance.
C. Policy Committee meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the Ralph.
M. Brown Act (California Government Code Section 54950, et seq.) and other
applicable statutes.

V.

AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS
A. Each PARTNER agrees to consider an annual financial contribution or other
method to offset NH costs (i.e., meeting rooms, communication costs, support
materials, outside agency support, and other incidental expenses).

VI.

LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION
A. Each PARTNER agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless other
PARTNERS, its officers and employees from all claims, demands, damages,
costs, expenses, judgments, attorney fees, or other losses that may be
asserted by any person or entity, including the NH, and that arise out of, or
are related any act or omission of the NH relating to this MOU. The obligation
to indemnify shall be effective and shall extend to all such claims or losses in
their entirety.

VII.

EFFECTIVENESS AND AMENDMENT
A. This MOU may be executed in counterparts, and becomes effective when
fully executed by all parties.
B. The terms and conditions of this MOU remain in effect until the goals of the
partnership have been achieved or until one of the parties notifies the others,
in writing with 30 days notice, that it wishes to withdraw from the partnership.
C. This MOU can be modified or amended by mutual written consent of all
parties.
D. This MOU does not replace or modify any other preexisting MOU between
any or all parties. Likewise, future MOUs may be entered into between the
parties not withstanding this MOU.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this MOU as set forth
below:

Name, Title
FORT HUNTER LIGGETT

______

DATE

Name, Title
CAMP ROBERTS

DATE

Name, Title
CAMP SLO

DATE

Name, Mayor
CITY OF PASO ROBLES

DATE

Name, Mayor
CITY OF KING

DATE

